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PREFACE

. Our Program lists usefulness to policy makers among its principal
goals. One form of this usefulness rests on the impartiality resulting
from diverse funding, on competence based on ongoing dialogue with con-
flicting stakeholders and on our analytical ability.

To the Congress we differ from most witnesses, whose reasons for
testifying 1ie in their partiality and whose special competence rises
from their active role.

The breadth of our exposure provides us with an ability to see the
ways in which diverse parts of the information business interact. One of
the simplest conclusions from this vision is that they do interact. The
principal message in our testimony in 1976 and 1977 to the 94th and 95th
Congresses* was that there were more businesses with a stake in the
Communications Act of 1934 than only telephony and broadcasting. Indeed,
the 1ist included both organizations which were already appearing in testi-
mony, such as the computer industry and the peripheral equipment manufac-
turers, and organizations which were not, such as newspapers, banks and the

Ppstal Service.

The point proved to be an indicator of the course that the "rewrite"
effort was to take. As it progressed, new industry after new industry
appeared and articulated diverse and often conflicting interests. One
result has been the diminution of the scope of the bill, including the
disappearance of a broadcasting rewrite in the House version, as the
growing conflict emerged. Another has been the passing of several dead-
Tines for early and easy passage of a bill, as fresh and unexpected
stakeholders materialized.

We repeated this message in the testimony before the 96th Congress,
which is presented in this volume. Added to it were several other points
which emerged from the breadth of our perspective. We stressed that not
only did the bill need to accommodate diverse stakeholders, but that the
types of problems being addressed did not have “yes or no" answers, as
many stakeholders claimed. Instead, solutions would involve the striking
of balances. We stressed that "deregulation”" did not necessarily equate
with "competition", nor "regulation" with “monopoly". Rather a mix of
regulation and deregulation would be required for any combination of com-
petition and monopoly desired, even the extremes. (See John LeGates House
testimony).

Furthermore, protection against subsidy, a key element in protection
of competition, is a virtue that can only be achieved at the expense of
economic efficiency - itself the goal of competition. (LeGates, Senate}.

We view cost and revenue allocation neither as a disorganized and
ineffective collection of compromises nor a uniform and simple system.
Instead it is the very complex, finely tuned product of a political system

* (Available from the Program on Information Resources Policy as Incidental
Paper WP-78-1).




involving local, state, and national interests. Disruption of the
political mechanism, by changing the boundary between state and federal
jurisdiction, could disrupt economic efficiency, political autonomy, and
the ability to provide socially desirable services. (Qettinger, Senate).

Between the complexity of the process and the dynamism of the
industries involved we suggested that ongoing decision making in the form
of congressional invervention could be too rigid for the industries and
too demanding for the Congress. We suggested that an independent regula-
tory agency continue to have major powers (Oettinger, House).

We also saw the possibility of centripetal forces interfering with
the integrity of facilities and services. We arqued that since Congress
wished to create a growing role for competing organizations, it should
also provide a growing role for mechanisms for co-operation, such as
govermment sponsored negotiations, and the relaxation of certain anti-
trust provisions {Borchardt, House and Senate).

The Senate invited John MclLaughlin to testify on the subject of the
U.S. Postal Service. He reinforced the view of the USPS as a stakeholder,
particularly one that stands to lose business to the growing electronic
transmission of information. He pointed out, however, that only USPS has
connections to every household, and that no other organization seems to
show an interest in delivering electronically originated messages to the
whole population, USPS entry into that business merits consideration as
a way to help with the losses that could otherwise appear.

The House invited Ben Compaine to testify on the media. He explained
that the traditional descriptions of media (newspapers, broadcasters, etc.)
make less sense today than to think of each as a combination of content and
conduit. In light of the changes taking place in technology and industry
structure, he recommended against freezing the media into their existing
modes of operation. Newspapers must be able to move into other forms of
distribution, such as over cable or telephone lines. Television broad-
casters must be able to cope with competition via offline distribution,
such as video cassettes or disks, as well as with cable or direct satellite
broadcasting. He suggested that cable, not broadcast, cross-ownership with
newspapers will be a major media policy issue in the decade of the 1980's.

Some of these points were not unique to our testimony. However, the
others who presented them often did so in defense of their own interest)
the Program's articulation did not.

Whatever bills pass or do not pass, we do not think that the problems
addressed in the hearings can be "solved". Instead there will be ongoing
conflicts and accommodations. These will require the action of public
bodies, such as the courts, the Congress and regulatory agencies.

The ideas presented here will remain useful, and will be used by
those bodies for years to come. For this reason we urge our readers to
let us know of any errors or misrepresentations they discover here.

John C. LeGates
August 1980
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THE COMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1979

WEDNESDAY, MAY 2, 1979

House OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON COMMUNICATIONS.
COMMITTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE,
Washington, D.C.

STATEMENT OF JOHN C. LeGATES, DIRECTOR, PROGRAM ON
INFORMATION, RESOURCES AND POLICY, AND PRESIDENT,
CENTER FOR INFORMATION POLICY RESEARCH. HARVARD
UNIVERSITY, ACCOMPANIEL BY ANTHONY G. OETTINGER,
CHAIRMAN
Mr. LEGATEs: Mr. Chairman, 1 atm John LeGates. I am director

of the program on information resources policy at Harvard Univer-

gity and president of the Center for Information Policy Research, a

companion nonprofit organization.

With me here is Anthony G. Oettinget, chairman of both organi-
zations.
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‘We are supported by approximately 70 organizations, many of
whom compete and conflict. With your permission, Mr. Chairman,
two documents describing our work are appended.! The opinions
expressed here, however, are my own,

Mr. LEGATES. The Van Deerlin bill relies heavily on two tech-
niques to achieve its purposes. One technique is to rely on competi-
tion and the private sector * * * to the maximum extent possible to
determine the variety, quality, and cost of telecommunications
services and facilities. (Sec. 311(a), p. 41). The other is the reduction
of regulation until it exists only to the extent necessary to protect
the consumers of telecommunications services provided by domi-
nant carriers. (Sec. 311(b), p. 41). This regulation, along with the
class of dominant carrier wiil cease to exist after 10 years.

There appears to be an assumption that these two techniques
will coincide: that monopoly and regulation go hand in hand, and
so do competition and absence of regulation.

I fear that this assumption is unjustified. In this industry, a
monopolistic structure has indeed been regulated and perhaps also
fostered by regulation. However, the absence of regulation does not
necessarily foster competition. Indeed, the American Telephone &
Telegraph Co. established its dominant market position in an
unregulated environment, as did International Business Machines.

The bill provides for deregulation of the industry after a decade
gy emptying the dominant carrier classification (sec. 322(d), p. 51).

he assumption behind this provision appears to be that a decade
of competition will have eliminated the reality of dominant carri-
ers and that once regulation ceases, no carrier will achieve or
regain domination.

An examination of the current published plans of the major
competitors for interexchange traffic is not very encouraging.
Those using terrestrial links, such as Southern Pacific Communica-
tions and MCI, cannot reach cities without building physical con-
nections. These will be most economical to the largest cities. Some-
where, there will be a cutoff, leaving many, probably most, cities
unserviced. Those competitors planning satellite access can reach
smaller cities but still have economic limitations. Only certain
places will be profitable. Satellite Business Systems, American Sat-
ellite, and Xerox currently plan to market to only the largest 200
cities at most.

It may or may not be true that in a decade there will be no
dominant carriers. It is certainly possible that there may be such
carriers. I think that the bill will better serve its purposes if it
leaves the flexibility, whether in its own provisions or in the hands
of the regulatory commission, to cope with this possibility.

Another area where regulation may be needed:to make competi-
tion work is in the allocation of costs and revenues. The present
separations and settlements process will wither away under this
bill. However, some of the functions it provides are essential and
some process is needed to provide them. The Van Deerlin bill
passes revenue from interexchange services to interexchange serv-
ices by means of access charges (sec. 324, p. 52fD), some of which are

! Information Resources: Performance. Profits and Policy, and The Program: Who We Are and
What We Do, by Anthony G. Oettinger, John C. LeGates, and John F. McLaughlin, are availahle
from Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass. 02138,
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pooled. This approach differs significantly from the Hollings and
Goldwater bills in the Senate. These provide for a fund which will
distribute revenue to intraexchange carriers. The revenues for this
fund will come from all interexchange carriers, whether they con-
nect to intraexchange carriers or not.

The House and Senate versions will provide different incentives
to carriers, with the House bill seeming to offer less incentive for
an interexchange carrier to connect to intraexchange carriers. The
way out of this, should you wish it, would seem to be a Federal
presence in cost and revenue allocation.

An area in which regulation may be needed for competition to
serve the public interest is in the coordination of the communica-
tions system. This has been achieved in the past by Bell System
domination and a cooperative relationship among the different sup-
pliers. Now a multiplicity of suppliers whe are competitors instead
of family members are appearing. This trend will accelerate under
the Van Deerlin bill. The bill recognizes the need for coordination
in the section entitled ‘“Network Management” (sec. 332, p. 66). The
increasing difficulty of network management, however, may re-
guire stronger provisions than this section offers. For discussion, I
raise the possibility of extending the antitrust immunity beyond
subsection (a): agreeing to the design, plan, construction, and main-
tenance of a nationwide network of telecommunications facilities,
and the development of technical standards applicable to such
services and facilities (sec. 332,(a), p. 66).

I have questioned whether certain details of the bill wiil ade-
quately serve the purposes of the bill. In all these cases, there is a
possibility that the bill has been overly specific. Alternate provi-
sions or alternate timings might do the ,}ob better.

1 wish to propose that you consider leaving greater administra-
tive discretion to the Communications Regulatory Commission, op-
erating within the twin guidelines of relying on competition and
minimizing regulation. Otherwise, you risk the prospect that the
Jetter of the law may work against its intentions.

Analysis of these issues in greater detail is being submitted to
the Committee as written testimony by my colleagues Kurt Bor-
chardt and Anthony Oettinger.

I thank you for the opportunity to express my views.

estimony resumes on p. 1229.]
Statements of Messrs. Oettinger and Borchardt follow:]
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Hsarings bafore the
Suboormmities on Commaioations
of tha
House Corrrittes on Intgratate and Foreign Canmerce

Nay &, 1978

STATEMENT OF ANTHONY G. OETTIMGER

Chairman, Program on Information Resources Policy
Harvard University

. Mr. Chatrman, my name is Anthony G. Dettinger'. I am 3 professor
at Harvard Unfversity, where [ chair the Program on Information Resources
Palicy. I am also the holdover chairman of the Massachusetts (able Tele-
viston Commission, a body I've served on since 1972, 1 speak here only
far myself, not for any institution with which I am affiliated, nor for
any of the 70 or so diverse public ar private organiza_tions that support
the Harvard Program's work {1ist attached).

It §s a pleasure to testify before you once again. I shall focus my
comments on Sections 322 and 324 of Part B of Title III of the Yan Deerlin
bi)1, a portion dealing with fnterexchange carriers.

My main point is that there are limits to unlimited competition.
Comsequently, I suggest that, except for the crucial question of locating
Jurisdictional boundaries, 1t may be wore constructive to place greater
waight on broad guidance for flexible regulation and less weight on detailed

legislative injunctions. 1 will also draw ybur attention to certain key
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relationships between the interexchange and exchange jurisdictions and
to the import of the different treatments of these relationships as
envisaged by the Hollings and Boldwater bills in the Senate and your own
here in the House. '

Section 322 {d} would eliminate all regulation of interexchange
markets after 10 years {p. 51). 1If I interpret the bil1 correctly in the
Tight of Section 322 [b){1)'s definition of a dominant carrier {(p. 50},
the elimination of all regulation by Section 322 (d} is tacitly based on
the assumption that 10 years' operation of market forces will leave no
one dominant fa the sense of Section 322 (b}(1). Otherwise, regulation
after 10 years would be as justifiable as before.

The facts at my disposal suqgest that deregulation of interexchange
markets may Be a pipe dream and that attempting to live that dream may
1nperi1 the effectiveness of the proposed legislation. You yourself,

Mr. Chairman, have noticed this, since you have been quoted as observing
that "we continue to hear that full and fair competition {5 great in
principle, but when 1t 1s proposed, 1ihitations are suggested” {Telecom-

munfcations Reports Vol. 34, No. 1, August 7, 1978, p. 1). I think there

are rea) limitations on competition, Timitations that transcend self-serving
arguments of interested parties.

The dream is a prevalent one. ATAT asserted for many years that it
Toved the regulated manopoly that was, could Y¥ive with unfettered competi-
tion if ft could be, but thought reguiated competition the worst of all
possible warlds. Many economists, as well as numerous industrialists,
oppose monopoly and extel the virtues of an ideal free market place, an
ideal that has never matertalized, as my Harvard Business School colleague,
Alfred 0. Chandler, Jr., has chronicled so well in his book, The Visible

Hand: The Managerial Rewolution in America.

S8-984% @ - 80 - 5
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Will it ever be? Experts are too wrong too often for me ta wish te
be foolish enough or arrogant enough to assert that "{nteraxchange" will
never be synonymous with "competitive", But I respectfully suggest,

Mr. Chairman, that it may be as foolish or arrogant for a legislature to
mandate that they will indeed have beceme synonymous by & date certain,

i0 years or any fixed number of years out. 1t may therefore be more
constructive, Mr. Chairman, to let the matter rest at or near the broad
pro-competitive injunctions of Section 311 (a) and Section 311 (b). In
that case the Communications Regulatory Commission would, under continuing
Congressional oversight, have the latitude to apply that competitive
standard -- absent from the Communications Act of 1§34 -- to future
conditions that 1 think none of us can foresee clearly enough to support
so restrictive a mandate as is imposed by Section 322 {d}.

The absence of universal interexchange competition alse implies a
continuing need for supervising cost allocations. Such a need is clearly
recognized in Section 324 nf your bill. However. the language of Section
324 (¢} suggests that the need is seen as transitional on!y.t

I agree that the peculiar current separations and settlements process
cannot Tong endure under emerging conditions. 1 also think, however, that
the functigns of that process {including cost allocation within and across
jurisdictions) will remain essential, and that some appropriate way must
be found to continue discharginé these essential functions. Details on
this point are in testimony which I am presenting to the Senate subcommitiee.
I therefore ask, Mr. Chairman, that I be permitted to incorporate that

Senate testimony here by reference, since it is necessary background for

* Section 324 {c)(2), however, seems ambiguous in that it could be read
as allowing any ceiling whatever after 10 years.
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To the contrary, I think we are stuck in a world where relying on
*competitfon...to the maximum extent possible® {Sec. 311 {a), p. 41) will
fnevitably require significant regulation as well, 1 share the prevalent
dissatisfaction with unnecessary regulation poorly done. Our challenge,
Mr. Chairman, 1s to make necessary regulation work better.

In support of this viewpoint, let me explain why 1 think that
"{nterexchange market” is not synonymous with “competitive market®, now
or in the foreseeable future. Exhibit 1 shows ATAT's major interexchange
routes as of December 1978, Exhibit 2 shows major competing terrestrial
interexchange routes as of the same date. These two sets of routes are
superimposed for comparisen in Exhibit 3. Exhibit 3 makes it clear that,
as of now, there 1t indeed competition for tnterexchange facilities and
services among several major cities. It makes it equally clear that there
15 no competition for {interexchange facilities and services among most
cities,

Exhibit 4 makes it clear that this need not always be so. The
technologically possible coverage of Satellite Business System's proposed
facilities extends over most of the Unfted States. But what §s Seen as
sconomically attractive, as contrasted with technologically possible, is
fllustrated by Exhibit 5. The interexchange satellite segment of the
proposed XTEN {Xerox) system, like SB5's, is conceived of as reaching
rooftops only at a few locations, not at every business or residential
Tocale. What locations? £xhibit 6 suggests no more than 200 cities, of
which 50 account for the largest and hence economically most attractive
competitive markets. I am aware of no plans te extend competition more
widely. So “interexchange" is not now synocnymous with "competitive", nor

is 1t 1ikely to be in the near term.
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the three points that follow about equitable and effectively administrable
ways to carry out necessary cost-allocatfon and related functions,

First, Section 324 provides for certain charges to interexchange
carriers for both direct (324 (b)(1}) and common {324 (b)(2)) costs of
exchange facilities. These charges are to be levied only on interexchange
carriers "who seek to originate or terminate interexchange telecommunica-
tions service through the use of intraexchange telecormenications facil-
jties" (Section 324 (aj(i’_l. p. 53}, Particularly with respect to common
costs, [ think this differs materially from comparable provisions of
$.611 {Hol1ings bill) which envisages an exchange maintenance program .
based on fees collected from “all [ewphasis added] interexchange carriers,
in proportion to their relative amounts of interexchange traffic* (S.611,
Section 223 (c}, creating Section 222 {c), p. 54). 1 read “ali™ as meaning
“whether they use any local exchange facilities or not.®

If my reading of the differences on this point between H.R. 3333
and $.611 15 correct, ther very different competitive incentives and
Jurisdictional cost burdens would be mandated by the twe bills. Your
b{17, Mr. Chairman, would encourage competitors to bypass local exchange
factlities and jurisdictions to a greater extent than the Senate bill's
incentives. I am not prepared to comment on the relative merits of these
alternate incentives, but note the point as affecting cost allocations and
as patentially significani in terms of technological possibiTity, economic
efficlency and political reality.

Second, both H.R. 3333 and §.622 (Goldwater bi11) make regulatory
distinctions between basic voice and other local exchange services that
I find absent from S.511. I think that the presence or absence of these

distinctions will materially affect the complexity of cost allocations
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and pricing, whatever specific mechanisms are envisaged to perform these
functions. More sfgnificantly, the presence or absence of these distinc-
tions will also influence incentives to bypass local exchange facilities
and jurisdictions or not. Besides, the distinction may grow untenable as
digital technology becomes more widespread, reaches into residences, and
makes telling a voice transmissien from, say, banking transaction data,
increasingly difficult.

Ffnally, H.R. 3333's Section 324 leaves much discretion to the
States where 5.611 (Section 222 {b}, p.54) injects a wore significant
federal role in cost allocation and price determination, The likely
implications of this difference are the matn burden of my testimony to
the Senate, incorporated here by reference. [ mention that difference to
draw your attention first to its pessible major impact on fhe visbility of
shifting jurisdictional boundaries from interstate/state to interexchange/
exchange, and second to the 11kelfhoad of your having to reconcile the
differences on this score between the two chambers.

Where the boundalry between federal and state jurisdictions is to be
set 1s ciearly a matter of the highest legislative and judicial import,
not one to be delegated to or preempted by any administrative agency. But
the details of setting as yet dimly perceived and highly unpredictable
competitive balances and differential incentives are of the stuff for which
administrative agencies were invented in the first place.

On al) these grounds, Mr. Chafrman, I therefore suggest in conclusfion
that you consider leaving greater administrative discretion to the Communi-
cations Regulatory Commission within H.R. 3333's explicit guidelines for
relying on competition and the private sector to the maximum extent
" possible. Change continues in the compunications realm alt a remarkably
rapid pace. Even with the best of inteantions and the most superb drafts-
manship, too detailed 2 legislative mandate is bound to be confining,
hence very likely to lead the affected parties to clog the courts and

return to Congress time after time for petty legislative adjudicatfons,

1 thank you.

10
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Matfonal Technical Information Service
National Telecommunications & Infor-
mation Administration
United States Postal Service
The Washirgton Ppst Company
Nestern Unign International, Inc.
Xerox Corporation
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EXPANSION OF PROSPECTIVE MARKET FOR
INFORMATION SERVICES
AS A FUNCTION OF CITIES SERYED

1980 Projections

Cumutative Prospect
Coverage

© % O Polantis
Reached

=0 100 150 200
Cies Sevved

Exhibit 6: Pattern of Economic Attractiveness
of XTEN Satellite Coverage

Source: Xerox Corporatian. Pelition for Rulemaking, Appendix G, p. 17¢c,
submission to the Federal Communications Commission, Nov. 16, 1978,
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Bearings before the
Subcorrmitiee on Commmioations
of tha
HAouse Committee on Intersitate and Foreign Commerce

May 2, 1979

STATEMENT OF KURT BORCHARDT

Research Fellow, Program on Information Resources Policy
Harvard University

My name is Kurt Bor¢chardt. For nearly three decades | served as
legat counsel to the parent committee of this subcommittee. My respon-
sibilities included but were not limited to communications Jegislation.

At present I am a Research Fellow of the Harvard Program on [nforma-
tion Resources Policy. However, the views presented here are my own.

It f5 gratifying to me that Chairman Van Deerlin and his able subcommittee
staff are playing a leading and very constructive role in the commnicqtion
and information areas.

My testimony will focus on the Network Management provisions contained
in Sec. 332. I want to commend Chairman Ven Deerlin and his co-sponsors for
paying.attention to processes as well as substantive goals. Just as the
medium is the message, the interactive processes between the players who
provide communications and information services and the federal government
are parts of the substance of our informatian handling infrastructure.

Let me put these interactive processes into a broad perspective:

The emergence of the information handling complex -- a whole made up
of complicated ar interrelated parts -- has resulted from the marriage of

telecommunication and data processing technologies on the one hand and a
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tlending of monopolistic and free market philosophies on the other hand.

Before the marrisge of the two techrologies and before the increased
reliance on marketplace forces, the Bell System designed, bullt, and
operated the domestic telephone system exerc{sing centralized managerial
control. The Bel) System perceived information handling as an extension
of telephany and sought legislation to give it authority to exercise
centralized managerial control over an information hand)ing system desfgned,
buflt, and operated by it. {A “system" as distinguished from a “complex"
1s a "regularly 1ntera£t1ng or interdependent group of items forming a
unified whole" {Wabster's Seventh New Collegiate Dictionary, 1963).)

The data processing segment of the information handling complex

Ievnlved as the result of merketplace forces which responded to the leader-
ship role played by IBM.

-The fedaral government, fn an effort to protect the public interest
as 1t perceived that interest, has employed two toels vis-a-vis the tele-
phone system: {1) common carrier type regulation and (2) antitrust
enforcement; it has used mainly the tool of antitrust enforcement vis-a-vis
the data processing segment.

With the emergence of the information handling complex, centralized
managerial control will not be available to assure the satisfactory
funcyioning of that complex. Will the marketplace forces be sufficient
te assure such functioning? Or will a measure of coordination have to be
achieved within that complex to assure its satisfactory functioning, and

~if so, how will it be achieved, and what will be the roles of the suppliers
of information handling facilities and services, of the various categories
of users of such facilities and services, and last but not Teast, of the

federal government?

19
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The information handling complex constitutes one of several infra-
structures on which ;ur sociat, political, and economic systems are built.
In order to gain a perspective, we might look at the energy and transpor-
tatfon infrastructures, We might also contemplate in what respects we
differentiate between the &omestic and the internmational aspects of the
information handling complex; and finally, we might consider how we deal
with weapons and space systems as distinguished from infrastructures.

To begin with weapens and space systems, here the federal government
plays the role of manager viewing the systeﬁs primarily as technological
phenomena which, unlike the infrastructures, do not directly offer services
to the public. The energy and transportation infrastructures offer vital
services to the public {or more accurately, to various publics), and
therefore, the Federal government has demonstrated keen interest in the
satisfactory performance of these infrastructures by establishing the Depart-
ments of Energy and Transportation. Other developed nations have seen fit
to have their central goveraments assume managerial roles with regard to
al! three infrastryctures: energy, transportation, and information handling.

With regard to our emerging information handling infrastructure, the
federal government finds itself in an ambiguous role; it functions as
manager insofar as the national security and the government's own informa-
tion handling facilities and services are concerned; it has functioned as
regulator insofar as the commnications segment is concerned; and ft
functions as monitor insofar as the infarmation handling complex is
concerned.

Belatedly, there is recognition in the U.5. that we shall have to
create special tools to deal effectively with the international aspects
of the information handling compiex, and H.R. 3333 contains provistons

tending in that direction.
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With regsrd to the domestic aspects of the inforwmation handling
complex, increased reliance on marketplace forces instead of centralized
menagement raises the question how to achieve coordination sufficient to
assure the satisfactory performance of the complex as a whole.

In giving Congressional approval and encouragement in Sec. 332 of
H.R. 3333 to the use by carriers of negotfating and joint planning
processes as technical coordinating tools, the sponsdrs of these bills
recognize the urgent need for facilitating coordination within the infor-
mation handling complex, While this recognition should be applauded, the . -
sponsors might be well advised to ask themselves the following guestions:
Should the antitrust exemptiom contained in subsection (c) of Sec. 332
be limited to those aspects Tisted in subsection (a): construction and
mfntemﬁce of a nationwide network of telecommunications services and
facilities, and technical standards applicable thereto? [oes Congress
fntend to withhold antitrust fmmunity from negotiatiens such as the ENFIA
negotiations which were carried on under FCC and NTIA auspices? Should
in addition to representatives of the Attorney General representatives of
the Communications Regulatory Commission and the Natignal Telecommonica-
tions Agency be asthorized to attend or wonitor such meetings? Should
user groups be represented at such meetings? Should the antitrust immunity
be dented if the coordinating activities pertain to data processing as
well as telecommunication facflities and services?

These are not easy questions to answer, but they should be given
careful consideration.

As we move from a Bell designed, built and operated telephane system
to an information handiing complex, coordination within that complex for
purposes of assuring its satisfactory functioning may be facilitated
through the use of a wide range of coordinating processes. The use of
these processes undoubtedly will raise antitrust questions. The Attorney
general should be authorized to judge, as he is naw, each of these processes
on its own merits, and the Commission and the Agency should be given ample
leeway to use whatever cogrdinating tool they deem appropriate in the
public interest.

-

1 want to thank you for giving me an opportunity to appear before

this subcommittee to express my views on this particular aspect of H.R. 3333,

and I shall be glad to answer any questions which you may have.
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Mr. VaN DggrLIN. Thank you, sir.

Do you have a statement, Mr. Oettinger?

Mr. OeTTINGER. No, our statements are together. The rest will be
submitted in writing.

Mr. Vaxn Deerian. You spoke for the group, in other words, Mr.
LeGates?

Mr. LEGaTES. Yes.

Mr. OerTiNGer. 1 would be happy to take more of your time, if
you wish,

Mr. VAN DEeRLIN. Mr. Shooshan.

Mr. SnoosHaN. There are a couple of questions I had. I just went
through your statement this morning, Mr. QOettinger, and that was
the first time I had a chance to Jook at it.

I think what we will do is, rather than take the time of the
committee now, I will ask you to respond in writing about your
statement.

Mr. OETTINGER. We would be happy to do that.

Mr. SHoosHAN. Mr. LeGates, [ have a couple of questions about
your testimony.

You suggested in a couple of places that our bill has been overly
specific. I might suggest in a couple of places in your testimony you
have been overly vague. On page 3, you point out how the House
and Senate versions offer different incentives to ecarriers; with the
House bill seeming to offer less incentive for an interexchange
carrier to connect to an intraexchange carrier than does the Senate
bill.

How do you see that? What do you see that causes you to make
that statment?

Mr. LeGaTes. As I understand the House bill, if an interex-
change carrier does not connect, it is not subject to access charges
and, therefore, does not have to pay directly into the pool support-
ing the local carriers. That would avoid a cost which they have an
incentive to avoid.

As T understand the Senate bill, they have to pay, whether they
connect or not.

Mr. SuoosHan. OK. Is that a good idea? That was going to be my
guestion. Do you like the surcharge on nonconnected carriers that
is in 8. 611?

Mr. LeGarTes. I think it is a question of different consequences
coming from different alternatives. In the absence of a surcharge
for the people who don't connect, there will be less money available
to support the local exchanges.

And I can easily imagine cash starvation occurring to the local
exchanges, who may have to raise their rates.

Mr. SHoosHAN. When do you see this cash starvation occurring?

Mr. LeGates. Should a large enough percentage of the interex-
change carriers fail to connect then the revenues which currently
flow from interexchange to intraexchange will be reduced.

Mr. SHoosHAN. If they fail to connect, how will they handle the
local distribution of their traffic?

Mr. LeGartes. They could be seeking corporate business only and
avoiding households.

Mr. SuoosHAaN. OK.

58384 0 - A0 - &
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In other words, if they put, for example, a small dish on top

0 B

Mr. LEGATEs. Exactly.

Mr. SHoosHAN. Or to put it another way, like, for example, use
the cellular concept like the X-ten proposal? :

Mr. LeGATES. Yes; as is currently planned.

Mr. SuoosHAN. Should those kinds of stand-alone systems pay a
surcharge; make a contribution to the maintenance of the local
exchange? -

Mr. LEGATES. The word “should” puts me in a position of advoca-
cy, which I don’t want to be in. Some people win, and some people
lose if they do, and also, if they don’t. And if they do not pay such
a surcharge, the possibility of local exchanges having to raise the
rates to households or to businesses is there.

Mr. SHoosHAN. What are the contrary problems of the noncon-
nected carriers?

1 mean, you said there may be a problem if the telephone net-
work loses the traffic. Are there now correspondinﬁ benefits to
leaving the unconnected carrier unburdened by a surcharge?

Mr. LeGaTes. There are clearly benefits.

They can then provide cheaper service to their customers. It also
avoids the question of determining relative access charges and
what those charges should be.

Mr. OETTINGER. May I interject?

I think our purpose is simply to point out, as Mr. leGates has
said, that this House and Senate version set up a rather different
get of incentives and may thereby set in motion a rather different
train of unfolding of events. And I think it is a point that will
require some reconciliation.

Mr. SHOOSHAN. So you are here to point out rather than to
recommend?
kji\gr. LeGartes. That is right. We are not an advocacy group of any

nd.

Mr. SHoosHAN. Fine.

My other question was on page 4 where you say: "“For discussion,
I raise the possibility of extending the antitrust immunity beyond
subsection (a).” How about specifically, in what way? How would
you extend?

Mr. LeGaTtEs. For instance, negotiations like the ENFIA negotia-
tions that have just taken place, Mr. Shooshan; are they allowable
under this bill.

Mr. SBoosHAN. Are they allowable under the 1934 act?

Mr. LEGATES. They have been allowed, in any case.

Mr. SnoosHAN. Do you have any problems with the way in which
they have been conducted?

Mr. LEGaTEs. Rather than my own problems, I would——

Mr. SHoosHAN. | just want to understand what you are getting

Mr. LEGaTEs. OK. '

I am getting at the possibility that network management will
become an increasingly difficult thing to accomplish. It will require
more and more discussions and arrangements among the members
who, by nature, Mr. Shooshan, do not necessarily wish to get into
the same room. A

at.
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And you may wish to provide specific provisions allowing them
to do so. Coming back to the ENFIA negotiations and extensions
thereof—

Mr. SuoosHAN. | thought we had, in that section. I just wondered
what was inadequate about what is in the bill today?

Mr. OeTTINGER. I think it may be a matter of reading the intent.

Mr. Borchardt, in his testimony, which you have before you in
writing, goes into this in more detail. We think that, given the
complexity of all of the issues, Mr. Shooshan, that a provision for
negotiation is an excellent idea.

We have done a preliminary study of the conditions under which
the ENFIA negotiations took place, and we believe these were
rather unique conditions. Our concern is that the specificity here
in prescribing certain circumstances, as stated on page 4 of Mr.
LeGates ’testimony, could be read narrowly as precluding other
circumstances like the ones that permitted the ENFIA negotiatons,

So really, it is an endorsement of the ENFIA; that anything that
permits these folks under reasonable supervision, Mr. Shooshan, to
get together is a good thing.

Mr. SHoosHAN. It now increasingly becomes clear that it is a
problem of communication from us to other people. Everyboedy for
some reason wants to read that section as precluding things, when
it seemed, at least to us, and that is why it was in there, that it
was there to allow even the actual sitting down of carriers and the
forming of an association, as the staff memo points out.

Mr. LeGaTEs, No, we agree with the intent.

I suppose our comment is simply that the language—-

Mr. SHoosHAN. Needs to be clarified. Fine.

Mi-l VAN DeerLIN. Any further staff questions? Thank you very
much.

Mr. LEGaTes. Thank you.

Mr. Van DeeruiN. Qur next witness,is Emanuel Fthenakis,
President, American Satellite Corporation.
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May 3, 1979.

Senator HorLings. Mr. Oettinger.

Mr. OerTinGER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

My name is Anthony G. Oettinger. I am a professor at Harvard
University, where I chair the program on information resources
pelicy. I am also the holdover chairman of the Massachusetts Cable
Television Commission, a body I've served on since 1972, I speak
here only for myseif, not for any institution with which I am
affiliated, nor for any of the 70 or so diverse public or private
organizations that support the Harvard program’s work. [List at-
tached.]

It is a pleasure to testify before you once again. Now that you've
jumped in to drain the swamp, 1 want to point out a few alligators.

We have been busy analyzing a lot of the data folks here have
alluded to. There is too much to present here, but we tried to make
explicit and intelligible something of the mind-boggling complexity
that folks have alluded to. We had some success in quantifying

" The Hill-Burton Act, 42 US.C. 8§ 291a et seq.. provides for Federal funding of State hospi-
tals with the State determining which individual projects to receive financial assistance. [S';.e
Euresti v. Stenner, 327 F. Supp. 111 (D.C. Colo, 1971 reversed and remanded an appeal but not
as to delegation issue, 458 F. 2d 1115 119721} the Social Security Act, 42 US.C. 5% 603. 607,
conditions the release of AFDC—UP assistance funds upon the submission of a State plan and

rmits the States 1o determine wha shall receive such funds |See Carrolf v. Finch, 326 F. Supp,

14D.C. Alaska 19711 the Public Works and Econontic Decelupment Act Amendments of 1976,
42 US.C sec. 3121 ef s0q., provides for Federal disaster assistance upon determination of need by
the governor of any State; the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978, P.L. 95617, 92
Stat. 3117, provides, in Sec. 603, [or the payment of Federnil grants to an institute “established
by the NARUC",

" See the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, 49 US.C. §§ 167) of seq., esp. §§ 1672, 1673;
and the Environmental Quality [mprovement Act of 1970, 12 US.C. 8§4371 ¢! seq. which
specificaily states that the “primary responsibility for implementing this policy rests with State
and tocal governpents”, 43 US.C. § 44711on2) See also E’b v. Cincinnedi Triensit, Inc., 337 R.
Supp. 1068 (D.C.5.0D. Ohio 1972) discussing provisions of the Economic Stabilization Act of 1970,
and amendments thereto, B4 Stat. 799, providing for local regulatory agency review and ceclifi-
cation of all public utility rate increases.

" See 44 Fed. Heg. 9570 «Feb. 13, 1979).
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what Paul Henson described in the preceding panel as the unquan-
tifiable.

It’s too much to present orally. My full testimony, with your
permission, I would like to enter in the record along with addition-
al comments by my colleagues, Kurt Borchardt and John LeGates.
Mr. Borchardt’s remarks are addressed to the matters of network
management and system control in the absence of the old ways.
Mr. LeGates' remarks address themselves primarily to some of the
questions of divestiture and their consequences. B

With your permission, I would like also included in the record—
by reference—some of our testimony yesterday before the House
where we touched on still other matters. We would be delighted to
integrate some of these things for you and the staff and present
them as a coherent picture, but my comments today focus on how
telecommunication costs and benefits are to be apportioned be-
tween consumers of local exchange telecommunications services
and consumers of interexchange—toll—services. I believe that con-
tinuing controversies on this score are unavoidable. The issue is
how best to channel them. The cost picture is where all the action
is and continuing controversies on this score are unavoidable. The
issue is how best to channel them. They will not disappear. They
can't be legislated away.

The Hollings and Goldwater bills put the presently federally
regulated interstate toll services and the presently State-regulated
State toil services under federally supervised interexchange serv-
ices. Local exchange matters are left to the States, except for cost
allocations, where a Federal presence is mandated.

By displacing a buffering role hitherto played by the State gov-
ernments, this may lead to unmanageable confrontations between
the Federal Government and local political powers. At the same
time, the set of players is getting larger, less clubby, more visible,
more contentious.

I shail only sketch my argument orally, trusting I have your
permission, Mr. Chairman, to enter the supporting written details
into the record.

Right now, cost allocations are mediated principally by the so-
called jurisdictional cost separations process and the related reve-
nue settlements process. As I see them, the principal functions of
these present processes are as follows:

One, to allocate economic costs between the Federal and State
Jjurisdictions, hence to define the total revenues permitted to be
drawn from consumers in each jurisdiction.

Two, to modulate economic cost allocation with equity consider-
ations while staying within the bounds of applicable legislative and
Jjudicial mandates. That means sloshing costs and revenues one
way or another in a matter detailed with numbers and estimates in
the exhibits that support my full testimony.

Three, to mediate idiosyncratic political balances between toll
and exchange prices in each of the States.

Four, to keep relative peace in dividing revenues among the
1.509 or so current suppliers of traditional telecommunications
services,
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Five, to lend economic clout to the essential process of keeping
the multiple suppliers of traditional telecommunications services in
technical and operational harmony.

A continuing need for such administrative functions is recog-
nized by various provisions of S. 611 and 3. 622. If anything, the
burdens of carrying them out will grow heavier as the number and
variety of competing suppliers and anxious consumers grows and if
the proposed exchange/interexchange boundary replaces the State/
interstate border. That is my first major point. In light of the
findings of the bills before us, it needs no elaboration. At issue is
who shall bear these burdens how effectively, and with what kind
of policing.

The fact that AT. & T: alleged in the past that they were the
only ones competent to carry out these functions and that there is
a tendency among some of the AT. & T. competitors to reject that
allegation should not blind us to the notion that the functions m ay
well be essential and need to be carried out somehow. I think it’s
important to make that distinction so we don’t throw out—I won't
say the baby—the gorilla with the bath water.

I shall limit my comments here to the third of the functions I
have mentioned; namely, that of balancing toll and exchange prices
isn each of the states. The balance now struck differs from State to

tate. -

We can see something of what this balancing entails by looking
at how widely both toll and exchange rates vary State by State.

This is 1976 data. The first exhibit—exhibit 23 of my written
testimony for the record—shows that in Montana you pay a 30-cent
toll to taik for 3 minutes during the day to someone 25 miles away.
In Mississippi you pay 92 cents. The second exhibit—exhibit 24—
shows that in the evening Ohio is now on top with 62 cents and
Michigan at the bottom with 25 cents. At night, the third exhibit—-
exhibit 25—shows that Ohio still has the most expensive call at 59
cents, but Kansas now has the cheapest, at 16 cents. | should add
that there is equally pronounced State-by-State variability in the
book costs of interexchange plant. Hence State-by-State variability
would occur under competitive true cost-based pricing, though not
at all necessarily with the same pattern.

The fourth exhibit—exhibit 26—shows how basic rock bottom
exchange rates vary around some major patterns. On top, with
crosses, are basic business rates. On the bottom, with dots, are
basic residential rates. By decades-old custom, basic business rates
are roughly twice the basic residential rates. Both types of basic
rates generally go up according to the number of other telephones
that may be reached within a local calling area. But, around these
broad trends, there is again pronounced variability.

I want to call your attention to that variability State by State.

My second major point, Mr. Chairman, is that each of the States,
to make up its State cost pool, as now defined by jurisdictional
separations, now adjusts relative State toll and local exchange
prices by its own lights, reflecting its own economic and demo-
graphic patterns of both household and business consumers, its
own urban/rural balances, and its own regard or disregard of the
merits or demerits, powers or weaknesses of the comunications
suppliers within its borders.
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Hence it will not be an easy administrative task either to harmo-
nize or to dissociate State toll and interstate toll rates under the
new common interexchange—Federal-—umbrella envisaged by
S.611 and 8. 622. Nor can this task be guaranteed to be devoid of
political consequences, since making any change in State toll
prices, up or down, will gore someone’s ox or at least prick the skin
of someone's calf.

Failure to change also implies certain risks. Wide variability in
State toll prices may have remained unnoticed by many, or at least
accepted by those doing business within many States as one of
these peculiar consequences of State sovereignty within our feder-
ation. Such variability may be harder for Federal authorities to
explain and sustain if what are now State toll prices fall under
Federal interexchange authority. And it may be hard to do awa
with the variability without a myriad of Federal/local fights. Suc
fights are bound to arise over what proportions of exchange costs
are to be reflected in local service prices and what proportions are
to be charged to interexchange services, hence reflected in interex-
change prices. The terms actual cost and relative use in S. 611
have a deceptive clarity. They hide the problem or, at best, they
pose it. They surely do not solve it. They have, in fact, been the
very battlefield of the last 30 years’ war. .

Let me summarize my two major points, Mr. Chairman, and
make their import explicit. First, I have pointed out that present
and prospective competition increases the number of interested
parties within the telecommunications, data processing and other
‘supplier industries; notably the U.S. Postal Service. It has already
increased and promises to continue to increase the awareness and
participation of consumers, both household and business; in short,
what was a relatively small private club is going public in a big
wagr. Second, shifting jurisdictional boundaries as envisaged by
8. 611 and 8. 622 will, I think, eliminate much of the buffering that
joint boards and State responsibility for State toll provided in
insulating Federal authorities from State-by-State, locality-by-local-
ity accommodations between toll and exchange prices.

The effect is to set up potentially unmanageable Federal/local
confrontations.

The House bill leaves a buffering role to the States. That may be
an important point requiring accommodation between the two

Chambers, after considering the relative impact on the administer-

ability of the legislation as between these two approaches.

I also urge you to consider leaving greater administrative discre-
tion to the FCC. Give them better guidelines, but I think if you
inject the Congress into setting up and administering the detailed
apparatus for your “giant handicapping” scheme you will end up
grooming the horses, taking the bets, paying off every winner,
soothing every loser, and shoveling away all the manure. That's
what administrative agencies were created for in the first place.

I thank you for your attention.

(The statement and attachments follow:]

STATEMENT oF ANTHONY G. OETTINGER, CHAIRMAN, ProGRAM ON INFORMATION
Resources Povicy, Harvarp UNtvERSITY .

Mr. Chairman, my name is Anthony (. Qettinger. I am a professor at Harvard
University, where i chair the Program on Infermation Resources Policy. I am also
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the holdover chairman of the Massachusetts Cable Television Commission, a bod
I've served on since 1972. I speak here only for myself, not for any institution witl:
which ! am uffiliated, nor for any of the 70 or so diverse public or private organiza-
tions that support the Harvard Program's work (list attached).

it is a pleasure to testify before you once again. Now that you've jumped in to
 drain the swamp, I want to point out a few alligators.

Mr. Chairman, what is an economically efficient and also an equitable allocation
of costs is the question most fought over throughout the history of telecommunica-
tions. It is, I think, the question underlying ali the other questions about the bills
before us. Everyone's stakes depend on the answers. For household and business
consumers, the answers influence who pays how much for what. The answers
influence the ability of competing suppliers to recover costs, including return on
investment, without either predatory pricing or unfair burdens. They determine the

litical, economic and technological viability of this “giant handicapping scheme”,
if I may, Mr. Chairman, borrow your description of S. 611.

My comments focus on how telecommunications costs and benefits are to be
appropriated between consumers of local exchange telecommunications services and
consumers of interexchange 1toll) services. I believe that continuing controversies on
this score are unavoidable. The issue is how best to channel them.

The Hollings and Goldwater bills put the presently federally regulated interstate
toll services and the presently state regulated state toll services both under federal-
ly supervised interexchange services. Local exchange matters are left to the states,
except for cost allocations, where a federal presence is recognized.

B! displacing a buffering roie hitherto played by the state governments, this may
lead to unmanageable confrontations between the federal government and local
political powers. At the same time, the set of players is geiting larger, less clubby,
more visible, more contentious.

Right now, cost allocations are mediated principally by the so-called jurisdictional
cost separations process and the related revenue settlements process. Mention of
these current processes widely draws snickers or dirty laughs. On their face, these
processes do place among the more bizarre and occult forms of gerrymandering ever
devised. However, without passing on the merits of the outcomes of these processes
themselves, as polished jewels of effective administrative practice. As [ see them,
the functions of these present processes are as follows:

1. To allocate economic costs between the federal and state jurisdictions, hence to
define the total revenues permitted to be drawn from consumers in each jurisdic-
tion.

2. To modulate economic cost allocation with equity considerationa while staying
within the bounds of applicable legislative and judicial mandates.

3. To mediate idiosyncratic political balances between toll and exchange prices in
each of the states.

4. To keep relative peace in dividing revenues among the 1500 or so current
suppliers of traditional telecommunications services.

5. To lend economic clout to the essential process of keeping the multiple suppli-
ers of traditional telecommunications services in techmical and operational har-
mony.

Aycantinuing need for such administrative functions is recognized by various
provisions of 5. 611 and S. 622. If anything, the burdens of carrying them out will
grow heavier as the number and variety of competing suppliers and anxious con-
sumers grows and if the proposed exchange/interexchange boundary repiaces the
state/interstate border. That 15 my first major peint. In light of the findings in the
bills before us, it needs no elaboration. At issue is who shall bear these burdens,
how effectively and with what kind of policing.

1 shall limit my comments here to the third of the functions I have mentioned,
namely that of balancing toll and exchange prices in each of the states. The balance
now struck differs from state to state.

The cost allocation question has persisted. I believe it cannot be legislated away.
Why? Because I believe that what economists call “economies of scope” are inherent
in. past, present and foreseeable compunications technologies, even though their
extent in particular cases and at particular times are debatable and will forever be
debated. 'l?here are economies of scope if a bundle of goods costs less to produce
when capital and labor are shared in producing them rather than devoted by one or
many suppliers to producing each in isolation from the others. Many of the contro-
versles of the last decade would have gone away without legisiation if this were not
so for much of the compunications technologies.

Please note that economies of scope are distinct from economies of scale, which
reler to lower costs per unit of production as the scale of preduction grows. The
concepts are not unrelated, however. Conceivably, if each good in a bundle could be
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* produced independently of the others with sifniﬁcant economies of scale, these
could outweigh the economies of scope realized from producing them together. In
that case, we could be economically efficient without being caught in the thicket of
joint and common costs wrestling with the thorny problem of cost allocation. But we
are deep in that thicke' now. I see no real prospect of leaving it, however many of
its thorn bushes we might hack away, or however many satellite orbits we might
leap into so as to bypass parts of it.

I therefore focus my comments on 8. 611 and S. 622 on how they put the question
of cost allocation as distinct from how that question has been gut in the past. This
leads into examining the processes proposed in S. 611 and S. 622 for addressing the
cost allocation and consequent guestions.

The issue is joined in 5. 611's proposed finding that “basi¢, universal, low-cost
public telecommunications services must and can be maintained in an environment
of increased competition, through appropriate financial, regulatory and procedural
safeguards incorporated in both statutory policies and industry relationships” (See,
201iaX8), p. 19), and in the statement that it "be the policy of the United States that
such services and equipment be provided under conditions of full and fair competi-
tion, to the maximum extent feasible and consistent with the purposes of this Act”
(Sec. 203, p. 20). Similar objectives are explicit in Section 201 of S. 622 (p. 4.

S. 611 and S. 622 thus do not and, I believe, cannot eliminate the long—stand‘i,g
tension between, on the one hand, the traditional cost-averaging practices evol
by the telecommunications industry and its regulators at all leveE of government i
and, on the other hand, the pressures toward cost-reiated pricing induced by compe- !
tition. How these tensions are to be handled therefore remains of central impor- i
tance. ;

In this context, the bills propose replacing the interstate/state jurisdictional
boundary with a boundary between federally regulated interexchange (toll) services
and state regulated exchange (local) services (8. 611, Section 223(¢), p. 53; S. 622,
Section 201, p. 5. S. 61] requires interexchange carriers “to reimburse local ex-
change carriers directly for the actual costs [emphasis added) of originatinF, termi-
nating, or transferring interexchange telecommunications services” (p. 53, lines 12~
14), It recognizes the unavoidable commingling of jurisdictional interests by giving
the F.C.C. "authority to review, in the aggregate, exchange costs and revenues to
ensure that there is no unlawful discrimination in the use and pricin% of exchange
facilities as between exchange and interexchange services” (p. 54, lines 4-8). It
would then further authorize the collection of certain fees from all interexchange -
carriers. These fees would be disbursed under supervision of a federal/state joint i
board to local exchange operators in a waﬁ defined “solely on the basis of relative .
use {emphasis added) of exchange facilities by exchange and interexchange services' !
(p. 55, lines 8-10). All this is meant to rep{ace the processes hitherto “commonly !
referred to as jurisdictional separations” (p. 33, lines 8~9), Similar mechanisms for -
cost allocation are envisaged by S. 622, which also distinguishes voice grade from
Otheﬁ services {p. 5), thereby further complicating the question of what costs how
much. ;

The principal purpose of my testimony, Mr. Chairman, is to alert you to likely i

conseguences of the proposed Section 223(c), for all affected constituencies and for i

the effective administration of the law. My colleagues Kurt Borchardt and John C. i

Le(Gates focus their testimonies on specific implications for the processes envisaged |

by other sections of the bill. Toward these ends, I wish to note for the record a

working paper, “National Stakes in the Compunications Revolution: Jurisdictional

Cost Separations,” recently issued for comment by the Harvard Program on Infor-

mation Resources Policy. That paper contains much of the data and analysis that

support cur further testimony. It is not yet a finished product, but has already
undergone enough of our Program’s external reviewing process to assure me that it
is correct in the main, although incomplete and not necessarily correct in certain

details that could be important in an adjudicatory context, but are too fine grained i

to matter in a broadly brushed picture. !

With exceptions I will note as they arise, all data I will present to you are for the
year 1976. This is the most recent year for which I found it possible to map the -
comprehensive yet detailed national picture I believe you require for national
legislative purposes.

Exhibit 1 shows, by jurisdiction, the dollar stakes of the traditional telecommuni-
cations industry (Bell System and Independentis) and their consumers. It aiso shows
the shares of state revenues derived from state toll and local exchange services. It |
seems safe to assert that aggregate stakes of competitors and their customers are of ’
comparable magnitude. although we have not yet had the time or resources to make i
a more precise determination. The proportions of jurisdictional cost in Exhibit 1 ;
(and therefore the proportions of the revenues from consumers i\n these jurisdic~
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tions) are far from God-given, technologically immutable, economically determinate,
timeless truths. They stem from cost aliocations and related arrangements deter-
mined by the minds and pens of your predecessors in the Congress, as interpreted
by generations of industry managers and of federal and state regulators. They are
political atlocations at the federal, state and local levels.

Over the years, the relative proportions of joint and common costs recovered from
interstate toll, state toll and Jocal exchange charges have changed in response to
changes in technology, markets, judicial decisions and political balances.® Terms
such as actual cost and relative use are putty, not bedrock. Historically, the remark-
ably and ingeniously malleable interpretations of the terms actual cost and relative
use that appear in ion 223tc) of 8. 611 have provided the means for accommodat-
ing to these vast changes. That is partly why the jurisdictional separation process
has been significant. That is why the determination of actual cost will remain
significant under any legislative mandate. The maileability of actual cost leaves
plenty of room for the inevitable future arguments over the fairness of burdens
allocated to the proposed interexchange (federai) and exchange istate) jurisdictions.

Neither is relative use a sole or sacred cost criterion. Without stretching any of
the arguments that regulators and judges have accepted in the past rom those who
argued there was too much or too little loading on this or that to support claims of
Eredato pricing, undue burdens or other inequities or inefficiencies, I suggest (in

xhibit 2) that a widespread of changes in cost allocations might be supported, in
either direction, by such arguments. Note that a dollar cost allocation change is
more highly leveraged in the interstate realm than in the state realm, given the
30:70 ratio of interstate to state cost allocations that obtained in 1976. Present law
leaves to state regulators the task of wrestling over how much of a cost change
hetween a 21 percent increase and an 11 percent decrease (Exhibit 2) might devolve
on state toll consumers and how much on local exchange consumers.

Hence, Mr. Chairman, the terms actual cost and relative use in S, 611 have a
deceptive clarity. They hide a problem or, at best, they pose it. They surely do not
solve it. They have, in fact, been the very battlefield of the fast 30 years’ war.
Consider, in that light, the aggregate consequences of shifting the jurisdictional
boundaries as envisaged in Section 223ic) and reflected in Exhibit 2a. Exhibit 3
shows how 1976 costs would be allocated to the proposed interexchange (federal) and
excth_ge (state) “jurisdictions” under current ground rules. The posts are of nearly
equal size.

Exhibit 4 shows how much variation between interexchange and exchange costs 1
think can be rationalized for the courts and the public with arguments no more
bizarre than any used to date. Under the Act of 1934, however, the problem of
balance between state toll and exchange revenues is for each state to wrestle with
as it sees fit. Under 5. 611, state toll would come under the interexchange (federal)
rubric. However, by giving the F.C.C. explicit authority to review the aggregate
balance of interexchange with exchange costs and revenues, Sec. 223(c) (p. 54, lines
4-8) would appear also to inject a federal presence at the borders of Jocal political
powers who hitherto dealt only with their State House and their phone companies.

In preparing Exhibit 4 1 have therefore explicitly allowed for variation in the
state toll/local exchange proportions. Given the 50:50 interexchange/exchange cost
ratio as of 1976, a dollar can be sloshed one way or the other with equal leverage.
However, the size of the exchange pot could be made to vary between a 41 percent
increase and a 26 percent decrease under explicit federal scrutiny. Before, each
state had the option of leading an average 21% increase in state allocation entirely
inte a 30% increase in local costs or entirely into a 709 increase in state toll costs,
or somewhere in between. Likewise for an average 119 decrease.

For better or worse, passage of 5. 611 or 5. 622 therefore would raise to the
federal level unavoidable local arguments hitherto spread around all the states and
handled within the framework of state politics. Some additional data will give you
further insight into the stakes in these arguments, and into the administrative and
political consequences of raising these arguments to the federal level.

The perceptions of parties to these arguments can vary widely. The data in
Exhibits 1-4, and the jurisdictional separations practices underlying them (described
in detail in my previously cited “National Stakes in the Compunications Revolution:
Jurisdictional Cost Separations™) can be viewed as evidence for a present overload-
inﬁ of costs onto the consumers of federally regulated interstate toll services. On the
other hand, the data ] am about to exhibit can be viewed as evidence for overload-
ing of costs onto the consumers of state regulated siate toll services. To reconcile

' A historical account is given in James W, Sichter, "Separations Procedures in the Telephone
Industry: The Historical Origins of a Public Policy,” llarvard Program on Infaormation Re-
sources Policy, Publication P-77-2, 1971,
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these percePtions. it is necessary to draw on details of consumer demand for various
services which my colleague John McLaughlin is beginning to develop in connection
with his studies of tradeofis between postal and telecommunications services, but
which are not yet in hand.

Exhibit 5 is'a map of the United States, with distances from Jefferson City, a
place about at the center of Missouri. It's a [amiliar picture, which I'll call the
geographic map of the United States. I call the four other exhibits I'm about to
show you telephonic maps. Whereas the geographic map shows actual shapes with
the circles showing miles, the telephonic maps will show costs, not distances, from
Jefferson City. ]

Exhibit 6 is the first telephonic mar. The map shows how much it costs to call
from Jefferson City, Missouri, to any place in the United States beyond the Missouri
border during the day and talk for 3 minutes. This means that all ir..vizmtm that coet
the same to call from Jefferson City lie on a circle around Jetferson City. A
telephonic map therefore looks distorted, since inches on the picture are proportion-
al to the price of telephone calls, not to geographic distance. Exhibit 6 shows the
telephonic United States as of 1957. It cost $1.70 to call a thousand miles station-to-
station through an operator. There was as yet no option to dial it yourself.,

The shaded picture of Missouri describes what aficionados call toll rate disparity.
We can see it better in Exhibit 6a. To ¢all a place on the Missouri border from
Jefferson City, you pay Missouri state toll rates. In 1957, these were higher than
interstate rates. This is shown by the border of the shaded Missouri. With interstate
rates, you could reach a point just outside the black {interstate) border of Missouri
at less than what it cost to reach a point just inside the shaded border at state toll
rates. This example thus illustrates positive toll rate disparity. That's especmlg
noticeable to folks along the border, since it means they pay more to call, say,
miles into Missouri than 25 miles into the United States. ) )

By 1971, you could dial it yourself interstate, but not within Missouri, In 1971, the
telephonic Lnited States and the toll rate disparity looked like Exhibit 7. It cost
$1.15 to ¢all a thousand miles and a good deal more to call New York than to call
Cleveland. Exhibit 8 gives the picture as of 1977 when from Missouri you could dial
iv;)urself to anywhere. It's clear that seen from inside Missouri, the telephonic

issouri has grown substantially relative to the telephonic United States. Also it
makes little difference now whether ky(n.t’re calling Cleveland or New York.

How come? Exhibit 9 tells part of the same story in different pictures. Between
1971 and 1977 the interstate toli rate schedule went up &nd changed shape. Most
gignificant is the changed shape. By comparison with 1971, 1977 shows a steeper rise
at shorter distances &nd a flattening at longer distances. The steep rise is what has
magnified the telephonic picture of Missouri. The flattening is what has relatively
shrunk the rest of the telephonic United States. That flattening is even more
grtl)]nounced in Exhibit 10, which shows the zame interstate rates in constant (1967)

ollars.

Exhibit 11 shows how Missouri's State rates also roge and changed shape between
1971 and 1977. Keeping in mind the geographic shape of Missouri shown in Exhibit
12, the effect of the rate change on telephonic Migsouri, as see from St. Louis, is
shown in Exhibits 13 and 14. Note expecially, how St. Louis’ nearest neighbors got
pushed further and further away relative to its farthest. This has created a new
disparity, about which more in a moment. The details of Missouri’s toll rate dispar-
ity are evident in Exhibits 15 and 16. From a positive rate disparity in 1971 (at all
but distances below 15 miles or so0) Missouri went, by 1977, to a much more
pronounced mix of negative rate disparity at distances below about 100 miles with
positive disparity above 100 miles. Paying more to call short distances inward from
the Missouri border than outward to the United States had become a thing of the
past, while both state toll and interstate toll prices roze and changed shape.

The steep rise of shorter distance prices may, however, create what might be
called an exchange/interexchange priced disparity. In Exhibit 17, note the rise in
prices for calling 10 and 25 miles interstate. Where that are local calling areas
straddling state borders, this would be noticeable in a steep jump in the price of
calling a place just outside the local exchange are over the price of calling a place
just within the local exchange area. Exhibit 18 shows that Missouri chose to hold
the 10-mile price steady, though clearly conforming to the interstate pattern at 25
miles. This could avord a steep jump in the price of calling (within the state) a place
i'ust outside the local exchange area over the price of calling & place just within the
ocal exchange area.

Exchange/interexchange rate disparities would thus increase pressures for ex-
tending flat-rate local calling areas, precisely when competitive pressures and domi-
nant economic wisdom are pressing for usage-sensitive and zone priced local calls.
Though the long wars over toll disparity may have wound down, at least for
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Missouri, similar battles appear likely to spring up at the exchange/interexchan
boundary just in time for the feds to take charge of that border, as envisaged hy‘g
611 and S. 622,

What administrative and political burdens this may entail becomes explicit when
tocking--behind the data averaged over all states and beyond the details of a single
state—at summary composites of all continental states.

What the preceding exhibits showed in detail for Missouri is sumnarized for all
states in Exhibits 19-22, For 1971, Exhibit 19 shows that 10 states had state tolt
rates mostly above interstate toli rates and 6 had state toll rates mostly below
interstate toll rates for calls to any distance. Two states had pegged their toll rates
to the interstate rates. The others, like Missouri, showed complicated crisscrossing
patterns with state rates above, at, or below interstate rates depending on the
distance called. By 1977 {Exhibit 20j, only three states had toll rates uniformly
above interstate rates and 11 had gone uniformly below.

All this reflects a complicated amalgam of techno-econo-political change. In 1971
only 17 states had direct dialing. By 1977 essentially all did. And the changing
shape of the rate curves, with their steep rise at shorter distances and their
flattening at longer distances, could be ascribed to response to competition, to
recognition of true costs, to both, or to neither according to the stakes of the arguer.
Whatever “true” engineering costs might be, the costs at issue in this legislation are
those hitherto determined by jurisdictional separations and envisaged by 5. 611 and
8. 622 to be determined at the interexchange/exchange border, in accordance with
Section 223(c).

{ wish to draw your attention. Mr. Chairman, not to the details of disputes over
“tree costs” and what’s predatory pricing or an unfair burden, but to a great state-
by-state rate variability and to the as yet unexamined, so far as I can tell, political
and administrative consequences of this variability for the processes envisaged by S.
611 and S. 622. Exhibits 21 and 22 show that while intrastate toll rates have
generally migrated downward relative to interstate rates, their variability remains
great. ] will show this explicitly in the next three exhibits,

Exhibit 23 shows that in Montana you pay a 30¢ toll to talk for 3 minutes during
the day to someone 25 miles away. In Mississippi you pay 92¢, Exhibit 24 shows that
in the evening Ohio is now on top with 62¢ and M{chigan at the bottom with 25¢. At
night, Exhibit 25 shows that Ohio still has the most expensive call at 59e, but
Kansas now has the cheapest, at 16¢. I should add that there is equally pronounced
state-by-state variability in the book costs of interexchange plant. Hence state-by-
state variability would occur under competitive ‘'true” cosi-based pricing, though
not at all necessarily with the same pattern.

I finally turn to exchange rates. Exhibit 26 shows how basic exchange rates vary
around some major patterns. On top, with crosses, are basic business rates. On the
bottom, with dots, are basic residential rates. By decades-old custom, basic business
rates are roughly twice the basic residential rates. Both types of basie rates general-
Iy go up according to the number of other telephones that may be reached within a
lol;::lal calling area. But, around these broad trends, there is again pronounced vari-
ability.

I can now make my second major point, Mr. Chairman. It is that each of the
states, to make up its state cost pool as it is now defined by jurisdictional separa-
tions, now adjusts relative state toll and local exchange prices by its own lights,
reflecting its own economic and demographic patterns of both household and Eusi—
ness consumers, its own urban/rural balances, and its own regard or disregard of
the merits or demerits, powers or weaknesses of the communications suppliers
within its borders.

Hence it will not be an easy administrative task either to harmonize or to
disassociate state toll and interstate toll rates under the new common interexchange
federal) umbreila envisaged by S. G11 and S, 622. Nor can this task be guaranteed
to be devoid of i)olitical consequences, since making any change in state toll prices,
up or down, will gore somecne's ox or at least prick the skin of someone’s caif. And
any change will affect perceptions of the interexchange/exchange rate disparity I
have described earlier, hence rock the exchange boat.

Failure to change aiso implies certain risks. Wide variability in state toll prices
may have remained unnoticed by many, or at least accepted by those doing business
within many states as one of those peculiar consequences of state sovereignty within
our federation. Such variability may be harder for federal authorities to explain and
sustain il what are now state toll prices fall under federal interexchange authority.
And it may be hard to do away with the variability without a myriad federal/loeal
fights. Such fights are bound to arise over what proportions of exchange costs are to
be reflected in local service prices and what proportions are to be charged to
interexchange services hence reflected in interexchange prices. As I have already
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noted (p. 8), the terms actual cost and relative use in 5. 611 have a deceptive clarity.
They hide the problem or, at best, they pose it. They surely do not solve it. They
have, to reiterate, been the very battlefield of the last 30 years' war.,

I close by summarizing my twe major peints, Mr. Chairman, and making their
import explicit. First. [ have pointed out that present and prospective competition
increases the number of interested parties within the telecommunications, data
processing and other supplier industries; it has already increased and promises to
continue to increase the awareness and participation of consumers, both household
and business; in short, what was a relatively small private club is going public in a
big way. Second, shifting jurisdictional boundaries as envisaged by S. 611 and 5. 622
will, I think, efiminate much of the buffering that Joint Boards and state responsi-
bility for state toll provided in insulating federal authorities from state-by-state,
locality-by-locality accommodations between toli and exchange prices.

The effect is to set up polentially unmanageable federal/local confrontations in
arguments grown more complicated and among many more parties than in the past,
The extensive procedural detail incorporated in $. 611 and 5. 622 may aggravate
vather than alleviate this problem. The parties may come to feel hopelessly con-
fined, hence clog the courts and return to Congress time after time for petty
legislative adjudications.

I therefore highlight for your consideration the fact that the Van Deerlin bill in
the House contemplates leaving a greater buffering role to the states (H.R. 3333;
Sec. 324). | also suggest you consider leaving greater administrative discretion to the
Federat Communications Commission, within 8. 611 or S. 622's explicit guidelinea
for placing increased weight but not exclusive weight on the marketplace.

The grand design of your “giani handicapping scheme”, Mr. Chairman, is appeal-
ing. I just wonder whether you also wish to inject the Congress into setting up and
administering the detailed apparatus for grooming the horses, taking the bets,
paying off every winner, scothing every loser, and shoveling away all the manure.
That's what administrative agencies were invented for in the first place.

My colieagues Kurt Borchardt and John C. LeGates explore this problem further
in their testimonies. We are at your disposal, and your staff's, for any further light
of detail you may wish to have us help shed on it. I thank you.

Harvarp UNIVERSITY—PROCRAM ON InPormaTION REsources Poricy
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Exhibit 8: 1971 and 1977 Interstate Rates
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1971 STATE TOLL RAYES:

DO NOT CROSS
CROSS INTERSTATE RATES INTERSTATE RATES

STATE TOLL ABOVE
INTERSTATE

Alobamg
indiong
Kanlucky

Neow Yovk
Norts Dokota
South Corolima
South Dokote
Teanctses
West Virginia
Wi i

STATE TOLL BELOW

INTERSTATE

Comrecicut
Goorqin
New Hompthira
Now Jersey
Rvode Isiond
Wyoming

States n iloics cross the intersiate rote bond twice,

Siatey in underkingd ilolics cross the inlerstaie rote band three times.

[ srote rotes equol intarstote rates

I tetersiate vate Sond. Exhibit 19: 1971 Toil Rate Disparily
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1977 STATE TOLL RATES:

CROSS INTERSTATE RATES

DO NGT CROSS
INTERSTATE RATES

Flerido
Atabama Lpuisiana Nevodo
New Yorh Mossachusells  Abeth Dodola
Novth Dakoto Minnesote Oragon
Vermaont Utgh Tergs

Jidl

Arkgmas
Colifornin

-Colorode

Georgia
Indiony
Maing
Missouri
Mebroska
North Cargiing
Wisconsin

[

STATE TOLL ABOVE
INTERSTATE

Kentugky
Missiszippi
Tennzssen

%+ | sTATE ToLL BELOW
i INTERSTATE

Idohe
THinols
Kanzoy
Marytant
.Michigen
Montona

Naw Harnpshire
Kuw Jeryey
Rhode lsland
South Dokota
Chlahomo

Stoles In itolics cross the intersicte raje bond twice.

[ stote rotes equal inferstate rates.
Bl itersian cata bana,
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Exhibit 20: 1877 Toll Rate Sisparity
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3 Minutes, 25 Miles (1976)

Exhibit 24: State Toll Evening Rates,







(1373)

(¥261) seley |eo07
oiseg Ul AJlliqeieA 192 HqIux3

VIHVY TPICT ALVYH LY T4 NIHLIAM 318VHIYIY SINOHIZIIL 40 HIAWNN,

omiorn 00°000°) 20000 ton'e w's 001
HirerryT LR UL e —__:ﬁ__ T )
— . o .w..m.. *ang .m _“ S
H ot .-..-d--oo. ....s.....“.h-..w.. -o-- o- ) .
- - -.I\N.‘ l‘l'.”!ﬂhu' . [
. O A B N . ¥ iz v
— . . - .. o M .v___. LI — 0
. e . " ", Ty §F'on
. ' a | Y *
. -.- ” LY --. . .
- . -il I e kL]
-n -n -‘--$
_ a .-
: poi 31
L L .:.. T w —
A .,_....m. 3
1 L I -l [ ol 4 wf
Lam ™ *.l...a._.
p— = -u | | -ul . -y 8T
= " bt EMANIE EDNINEIN = »
] FLAMIE SERNENG ~ B
[]
= ' - O
Lib L} h. F —»_—_—.-.— 1 1 q-—.-- 1 4 _w_-h.-.--. [ I —-_—b»_—- ' ]

{SUVITO0) 3DIAHIS TwI0T J1vH Lv 14 JISVE HOZ SILVY ATHLNOW

64



(1374)

StateMeENT of KUrT BorcHarDT, REsEARCH FELLOW, PROGRAM ON INFORMATION
Resources Pouicy, Harvaro UNIVERSITY

My name is Kurt Borchardt. For nearly three decades I served as legal counsel to
the House Interstate and Foreign Commerce Committee. My respongibilitiea gnclurl-
ed but were not limited to communications legistation and legislative oversight of
the FOC's regulatory activities. .

At present 1 am a Research Fellow of the Harvard Program on Information
Resources Policy. However, the views presented here are my own. I reside in South
Carolina, and it gratifying to be that Chairman Hollings and his able staff are
playing a leading and very constructive role in the communication and information
areas.

My testimony will focus on the Commission-assisted public negotiation provisions
of Sections 207 and 210 of 8. 611 and the carrier a ment and association provi-
sions of Section 225 (@N2XDXii) and («dX2xH) of S. 622, I want to commend Senators
Hollings and Goidwater and their cosponsors for paying attention to processes as
will as substantive goals. Just as the medium 15 the m e, the interactive
processes between the players who provide communications and information serv-
ices and the Federal ernment are parts of the substance of our information
handling infrastructure.

Let me put these interactive processes into a broad perspective: .

The emergence of the information handling complex--a whole made up of compli-
cated or interrelated parts—has resulted from the marriage of telecommunication
and data processing technologies on the one hand and 2 blending of monopalistic
and free market philosophies on the other hand.

Before the marriage of the two technologies and before the increased reliance on
marketplace forces, the Bell System designed, built and operated the domestic
telephone system exercising centralized mana%'erial control. The Bell System per-
ceived information handling as an extension of telephony and sought legislation to

ive it authority to exercise centralized managerial control over an information
andling system designed, built, and operated by it {A “system” as d:stu;fmshed
from a “complex” is a regularly interacting or interdependent group items
forming a unified whole” (Webster's Seventh New Collegiate Dictionary, 1963)).

The data processing segement of the information handling complex evolved az the
result of marketplace forces which responded to the leadership role played by IBM.

The Federal Government, in an effort to protect the public interest as it perceived
that interest, has employed two tools vis-a-vis the telephone system: (1) common
carrier-type regulation and {(2) antitrust enforcement; it has mainly the tool of
antitrust enforcement vis-a-vis the data processing segment.

With the emergence of the information handling complex, centralized managerial
contro] will not be available to assure the satisfactory functioning of that complex.
Will the marketplace forces be sufficient to assure such functioning? Or will a
measure of coordination have to be achieved within that complex to assure its
satisfactory functioning, and if 5o, how will it be achieved, and what will be the
roles of the suppliers of information handling facilities and services, of the various
categories of users of such facilities and services, and last but not least, of the
Federal Government?

The information handling complex constitutes one of several infrastructures on
which our sociai. political, and economic systems are built. In order to gain &
perspective, we might look at the energy and transportation infrastructures. We
might also contempiate in what respects we differentiate between the domestic and
the internationa! aspects of the information handiing complex; and finally, we
might consider how we deal with weapons and space systems as distinguished from
infrastructures,

To begin with weapons and space systems, here the Federal Government plays the
role of manager viewing the systems primarily as technological phenomena which,
unlike the infrastructures, do not directly offer services to the public. The energy
and transportation infrastructures offer vital services to the public (or more accu-
rately, to various publics) and, therefore, the Federal Government has demonstrated
keen interest in the satisfactor ‘I[.:_erformance of these infrastructures by establish-
ing Departments of Energy andy ansportation. Other developed nations have seen
fit to have their central governments assume managerial roles with regard to all
threg-. infrastructures: energy, transportation, and information handling.

With regard to our emerpging information handling infrastructure, the Federal
Government finds itself in an ambiguous role; it functions as manager insofar as the
national security and the government's own information handling facilities and
services are concerned; it has functioned as regulator insofar as the communications
segment is concerned; and it functions as monitor insofar as the information han-
dhng complex is concerned.
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Belatedly, there is recognition in the U.S. that we shall have to create special
tools to deal effectively with the international aspects of the information handling
complex, and S. 611 and 8. 622 contain provisions tending in that direction.

ith regard to the demestic aspects of the information handling complex. in-
creased reliance on marketplace forces instead of centralized management raises
the question how to achieve coordination sufficient to assure the satisfactory per-
formance of the complex as a whole.

In giving Congressional approvai and encouragement in S, 611 and §. 622 to the
use by the suppliers of telecommunication services and the Commission of negotiat-

- ing and associating processes as coordinating tools, the sponsors of these Bills
recognize the urgent need for facilitating coordination within the information han-
dling complex.

ile this recognition should be applauded, the sponsors might be well-advised to

ask themselves the question: Why limit the use of both of these coordinating tools to
specific situations such as interconnections, tariffs, and accesa charges instead of
leaving the Commission free, as it is now without legislation, to use these tools
whenever it considers such use in the public interest?

Furthermore, a word of caution seems appropriate. Let us not arouse excessive
expectations regarding the general effectiveness of these tools. Take, for example,
the ENFIA negotiations, which happened to result—fortunately—in agreed interim
access charges. The circumstances surrounding the negotiations were exceptional
rather than ordirary.

I have attended some of the negotiations, and I have interviewed most of the
important participants. My observation is that the success of the negotiations was
due largely to a number of factors which may not be present to the same degree in
other situations. The factors—not necessarily in the order of their importance—are:
(1) Negotiations concerned the stakes of different service providers and did not
involve the stakes of user groups to an extent sufficient to warrant their participa-
tion in the negotiations. (2) The stakes of the service providers were perceived in
terms of more or fewer dollars and not in terms of the justice or injustice of paying

_ access charges. (3) The stakes of the service providers were further limited by being
short term (“interim’’) and not constituting a precedent for the long run (“rough
justice), {4) The players had good and sufficient reasons—though different ones—
for wanting to reach an agreement. (5) The personalities of the players' representa-
tives, the Commission moderator, and other participants were well-suited in terms
of credibility, cratience, sense of humor, and sense of proportion to the task of
negotiating and bargaining in an attempt to reach a reasonable compromise.

t might we conclude from these observations? I suggest we might conclude
that successful public negotiations with Commission assistance will be the exception
rather than the rule and that we should be cautious not to raise excessive expecta-
tiona that this tool will go a long way in replacing adversary processes when it
comes to achieving coordination between contending players within the information
handling complex.

As we move from a Bell designed, built, and operated telephone system to an
information handling complex, we may have to pay the price of achieving coordina-
tion within that complex through an increasing number of adversary proceedings in
lieu of private and intra- and inter-compan neiatiations and agreements which
constituted an important management tool within the Beli-managed telephone
system.

Negotiations and associations for purposes of coordination will be valuable tools
wherever these tools may be used to advantage, though the occasions for their use
may be infrequent. The Commission should be given ample leeway as it has been in
the past to use these tools whenever it deems this appropriate in the public interest.

STATEMENT OF JOHN C. LEcaTes, DIRECTOR, PROGRAM ON INFORMATION
Resources Poricy, HArVARD UNIVERSITY

Mr. Chairman, my name is John LeGates. ] am Director of the Program on
Information Resources Policy at Harvard University and President of the Center for
Information Policy Research, a companion nen-prosit organization.

COur purpose is to examine the changes taking place in the information industries
with the aim of usefulness to government, industry and the public. We are support-
ed by approximately seventy organizations, many of whom compete and conflict.
Two documents describing our work are appended. The opinions expressed here,
however, are my own.

I read both 5. 611 and S. 622 as aiming to identify and classify distinct facilities
and services, to isolate them into separate accounts and, in some cases, to divest
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them into organizational entities without common financial structure, facilities or
personnel.

However great may be the virtue of simplicity in what S. 611 terms “full separa-
tion"”, one thing is clear. That is not where we are today. Joint and common costs
abound in the telephone companies, and in the competing industries as well. Virtu-
ally every kind of competitor with the telephone system also has them. This is true
of the computer industry, the data processing industry, the companies making
terminals, modems and interface devices, and the small and large competitors in the
interexchange transmission business.

The bills provide for a transition. This will involve a process, apparently applica-
ble 1o Category II carriers but not to competing industries with joint and common
costs, of classifying facilities and services, separating accounts, and maybe separat-
ing organizations.

I submit that pushing this task too far too fast is both impractical and undesira-
bie. It could involve administrative nightmares, direct damage to affected industries,
and the prospect of permanent inefﬁciencrl.

Let me begin with administrative nightmares. I see these as arising from two
activities: the classification of services. and the aliocation of joint and common coets.

These activities have something in common-a lack of deftnitional clarity.

An example of lack of clarity in classification is afforded by the 8 two
“Computer Inquiries”. These have addressed the problem of finding a distinction
between “computing” and “communications”. Failure of the first inquiry to produce
a satisfactory working definition led to the second inquiry. This is still in progress
after almost three years. I think that the problem is neither intricacy nor inepti-
tude. The problem is that there is no inherent difference between the two. Distine-
tions, if they must be made at all, will be arbitrary, or will be based on current
offerings. Arbitrary distinctions tend to break down upon application; those
on current practice refuse to hold still.

Some, possibly most, of the services, functions, and capabilities up for classifica-
tion present the same problem—there i3 no inherent distinction. If distinctions are
made, then services will crop up which fail to fit. If the classifications are enforced,
the y could freeze an industry whose dynarnism is a strong virtue.

Any classification of services, functions, and capabilities or any allocation of costs
will benefit some parties and harm others. Those who are harmed wiil defend
themselves. They will have s strong weapon: the lack of definitional clarity. There
will be appeals te the FCC and, as has been the growing trend, to the courts. The
poasibilities for tying up progress on claims and counterclaims are almost endless.

Lack of ¢larity in allocating joint and common costs arises from the fact that
these are arbitrary and indeterminate on purely economic grounds, especially in the
absence of perfect competition. Additional assumptions must be made. In this indus-
try these assumptions have been and are now determined by political accommoda-
.tiogs w.ilthin the framework of statutory and case law. Tony Oettinger explores this
tn detail

The only way to avoid arbitrariness in allocating joint and common costs is by
complete separation of capital and labor for every facility, service, or function.
Carried to the extreme, this would create a fragmented industry made up of small
companies. Many would be operating ciose to the margin to keep ahead of the
competition. Such an industry would be unlikely to offer coordinated services, or to
accumulate the cash necessary for major technological breakthroughs.

The possibility for direct damage to the industry lies in breaking up entities. The
Hollings bilt (Sec. 205(d), p. 31f) requires separation within 180 days of enactment
for certain ciasses of service and facility. It appears to require divestiture of Long
Lines from AT&T. It aiso appears to require divestiture of intrastate, interexchange
services from Bell operating companies. Likewise with MTS and WATS. [t would
appear to require breaking up Southern Pacific Communications Corporation by
virtue of its SPRINT service, and MCI by virtue of its EXECUNET service. It may
mf?ke ATT's Advanced Communications Service, or anything like it, illegal for any
offerer.

Some of these divestitures are probably contrary to the intent of the bill. as they
would damage entities who are already underdogs in the competition. Others may
retard the development of desirable services. Still others, because of the timing if
nothing else, will weaken existing services before the competitive environment
produced a repiacement.

The prospect of permanent inefficient stems from a problem built inta "full
separation”. Full separation is incompatible with economies of scope. Economies of
scope, different from economies of scale, are achieved by doing more than one job
with one rescurces. Using the same handset to make both local and long distant
calls exemplifies econotnies of scope.
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it can be argued that the economies buiit into a competitive environment are
Ereater than economies of scope. The answer to that question is not known. What is

nown, however, is that some separations can only be made at the expense of
economies ol “scope, and that the possibility of permanent inefficiency is present
whenever this happens.

We can now construct a restatement of the whole issue of separating entities. The
issue is “how far can we separate entities to encourage competition without becom-
ing bogged down in administrative swamps, doing direct harm to the existing
nystgm. or losing more through loss of economies of scope than we gain by competi-
tion?"” '

The bills each dea! with separation of entities at three levels: classification,
accounting separation and organizational separation.

The Hollings bill classifies all carriers as Category I or Category II depending on
the degree of effective competition +Sec. 204ia), p. 26ff). To determine the degree of
effective competition, the FCC “shall define and establish by rule generic classes
and subclasses of telecommunications services based on relevant distinctions as to
the primary functional telecommunications capability provided to the user and the
d of substitutability between and among comparable services.” The Goldwater
bill (Sec. 225(dX2WA) eliminates this step, and classifies only by degree of competi-
tion. Both bills cal! for ongoing review of the classification.

The Hollings bill stresses classification by service, but also adds two other criteria:
functions, and capabilities, the latter being open to interpretation as “facilities”.
The classification by services could be an administrative swamp, as suggested above.
Adding functions and capabilities makes it worse. The bill avoids the Computer
Inquiry’s unsolveable problem by avoiding service, function and technology criteria
altogether, and classifying only by degree of competition. A logical and consistent
follow-through would be to avoid these criteria elsewhere as well, and adopt the
Goldwater bill's approach of going directly to degree of competition

Accounting separation is specified in both bills, with heavy reliance on allocation
of costs among different services. The Hollings bill specifies (Sec. 220(a), p. 419) “such
guidelines shall be designed to accomplish a complete accounting divestiture of
competitive services of such carrier.” The Goldwater bill requires the Commission
(Sec. 201dX2XB), p. 9) “to allocate costs of service provided in order to ensure that in
any case where telecommunications products or services are provided by a carrier
which also provides the monopoly service, revenues and costs attributable to the
provision of monopoly service and all other services may be properly identified.”

Like classification, cost allocation poses administrative difficuities because of the
lack of underlying logical distinctions. Distinction can only be achieved by separa-
tion of entities. Although entity separation has a logical advantage over accounting
separation, it also has an enormous practical disadvantage—it precludes economies
of scope. Both bills may be setting in miotion & process which will harm economies of
scope to achieve cost altocation. A specific prohibition against using entity separa-
tion as a tool to achieve accounting separation would be beneficial.

Both bills deal with entity separation. The Goldwater bill allows it as a tool “to
accomplish policies” (Sec. 201(d¥2XC), p. 10). The Hollings bill goes farther, and

uires entity separation through a series of specific prohibitions (Sec. 203, p. 22,
and Sec. 205id), p. 31). These prohibitions rely on the definition of “fully separated
entity” (Sec. 103, 11, p. 8) which requires not having “common directors, officers,
employees, or financial structure or commonly owned facilities. . . R

These provisions of the Hollings bill are powerful. They deal specifically with
services which make up a large part of the existing industry, and they specify a
degree of separation which requires separation of plant. The language does not
contain edequate safeguards to prevent damage to economies of scope. There would
be less potential for harm if these separations were required only after accounting
separation had failed to do the job, and when the harm to economies of scope could
be balanced by a compensating good, such as the economies of effective competition.

In summary, | am recommending that the classification of entities by service,
function, or capability be avoided where possible, that accounting separation be used
instead of entity separation to avoid harming economies of scope, and that entities
not be separated until there are alternative competing entities.

1thank the committee for the opportunity to express my views.

Senator HoLLINGS. Mr. Knecht.

Mr. Kngcut. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am Louis B. Knecht, secretary treasurer of the Communica-
tions Workers of America.
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Senator HowLings. Well, I can see we are off to a glowing start.

The union is against the bill.

.NARUC says study it by a commission.

Professor Qettinger, who got us started in this direction, reminds
me of what they used to say aboard ship: “When in danger, when
in deubt, run in circles, scream and shout.”

I don’t know where we are going. Can you tell me?

I yield to you.
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Senator HoLuings. Can you explain thHe reason for the variability
referred to by Professor Oettinger, when he talks about within that
95-mile area a 30-<ent call for 3 minutes is 30 cents in Montana
and 92 cents in Mississippi?

Mr. LArkIN. Very easily.

Senator HoLLinGs. They are both rural States. We don’t have the
New York problem there.

How do you explain that?

Mr. LARkIN. You have different costs in different States and
different investments. You have some telephone entities with 2
percent money from REA. Others are paying 9 and 10 percent. You
have different labor rates and different local costs of material.

You have many other variables too. You have underground, as
opposed to overhead cable. You have some equipment that ma
have been there since the year 1. In other areas you have
equipment which is far more sensitive.

Senator HoLLINGS. You have a good comparison with Ohio and
Michigan. They would be developed, of the same industrial commu-
nities, and yet Ohio is 62 cents and Michigan is 25.

Ohio is more than twice that of Michigan.

Mr. LARKIN. That could be easily explained if you went to the
numbers. You don’t know what their original cost is or what their
continuing costs are.

‘The variebles go on and on. That is the difficulty of making
comparisons.

For instance, we have a situation upstate where we have one
company. It has a different system in the same company. The
resolution of that has plagued us for years.

Senator HoLLINGs. I understand that.

When you use the Federal approach, will it be more equalized?
Will it be a fairer system? Professor Oettinger, how do you account
for the variables?

Mr. OerTinGeR. As I indicated in my testimony—we find it diffi-
cult to correlate the variability in the costs with the variability in
rates.

Mr. Larkin is accurate in pointing out that different States like
to put different loads on different folks, to paraphrase another
expression. -

nator HoLLinGs. The cost is the same, but it's a difference in
allocation?

Mr. OerTINGER. No. There are really wide variabilities in costs.
But how the costs vary may have nothing to do with how the rates
vary. There is a lot of occult work that folks like Mr. Larkin do—
between. costs and prices.

If 1 may for a moment go back to your nautical analogy earlier,
mine was not a counsel of despair going around in circles shouting.
I simply suggest this, that I think there is an urgency for passing
legislation that makes it explicit that encouraging competition is
part of the regulatory standard and that the standard is forebear-
ance from regulation so that explaining why regulation, as opposed
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to explaining why not regulation. Such standards need to be writ-
ten into the act to recognize current reality and make it easier for
the FCC to forbear regulating without running afoul of the courts.

I might say the absence of such standards, of a competitive
standard and a standard of don't regulate uniess you have to is a
serious hobble to the present commission.

1 found that to be the case in my own experience within Massa-
chusetts Cable Television Commission,

We devoutly for 3 years tried to find a lawful formula for de-
creasing regulatory burdens.

We found no way of doing that without getting hauled into court
and very likely losing.

Last year we submitted a bill to the Massachusetts Legislature
asking for a simple change in our organic legisiation, namely,
saying: “Don’t regulate unless you have to and explain why you
have to regulate.” That bill is now on the Governor’s desk.

It seems to me that those are two key ingredients needed to
permit necessary regulation and avoid unnecessary regulation. My
concern is not over what the outcomes are, whether the pie carving
is good or bad or who will suffer and who will benefit—it is that
specifying too many details in the law is something that may get
the Senate and House into an endless swamp, with folks coming
back day after day with the kind of hooting and hollering they now
do before regulatory commissions. What seems preferable is delega-
tion to regulatory authorities of a more explicit mandate to the
effect that it is time to explicitly take the competitive standard
into account. It's time explicitly to justify regulation rather than
justify the absence of it.

I think that would go a long way.

There is no doubt in my mind that terminal equipment is some-
thing that should have been deregulated long ago, although there
is also no doubt in my mind that excruciating care needs to be
taken in the details of how it’s done and that such care cannot and
should not be taken in legislation, given continuing rapid change.

Let me give you a case in point.

Where I first came into the terminal equipment issue 10 years
ago with some studies of the matter of harm to the network, at
that time AT. & T. was alleging the linemen would fall off poles
like flies if anyone else hooked things to their network. They took
people to court for selling as foreign attachments gizmos that
would go onto the center of the dial, where the number is. They
said that would harm the network.

There were absurdities like that, clearly out of place.

Let me jump to the other extreme. :

Suppose that in a totally unregulated way somebody sold to
every household a gizmo for automatic dialing. You can’t get
through to the number you want to call, so you press a button and
the gizmo keeps dialing over and over again. If one of these were
active all the time in every household, nobody could get a call
through ever again.

That would put us in a situation of the French telephone system,
of which it’s said that 50 percent of the folks are always waiting for
a phone and the other 50 percent are always waiting for the dial
tone.
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At that extreme, yes, there can be real harm.

For the Congress of the United States to get itself bogged down
into those minuscule shadings, I submit, Mr. Chairman, you
haven’t got time enough in the world. Tell the FCC they have to
jtﬁstify regulating, not deregulating, but delegate the details to
them.

Senator HoLLINGs. I want to thank each of you on the panel for
the committee.

We have a rollcall and that is the last call. We have to rush over
to make it. :

The committee will be in recess until 2 this afternoon.

Thank you.

[Whereupon, at 12:30 p.m., the hearing was recessed, to recon-
vene at 2 this same day.)
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STATEMENTS OF JAMES V. P. CONWAY, DEPUTY POSTMASTER
GENERAL: JOHN F. MeLAUGHLIN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/
POSTAL AND ALLIED ARENA, PROGRAM ON INFORMATION
RESOURCES POLICY, HARVARD UNIVERSITY; AND FRANKLIN
T. JULIAN, DMRECTOR, DATA TELECOMMUNICATIONS POLI-
CIES AND PLANNING

Senator HorLings. Mr. McLaughlin, we can start with you. Go
right ahead.

r. McLavcHLIN. Mr. Chairman, I'm happy to be back before
this subcommittee.

I'm -executive director of postal and allied arenas at Harvard
University's Program on Information Resources Policy. We conduct
a policy research program supported by 7T0-some organizations who
have diverse and conflicting stakes in information policy. Qur sup-

rters are well-represented here today, because they include the

ostal Service, NTIA, CCIA, Xerox, AT. & T., IBM, Southern
Pacific, the letter carriers and a host of others having a strong
interest in electronic message services. (A list of program affiliates
is attached.)

Between 1964 and 1977 I was an employee of the U.S. Postal
Service. For the last 5 years of that time, I served as Director of
the Office of Sirategic Planning.

I am testifying today in a personal capacity, not as a representa-
tive of Harvard, our program or any of its supporters.

I realize that today’s hearing schedule is tight, so I will keep my
remarks brief.

First, let me address the broad question of telecommunications
-and postal services. Based upon my experience and my recent
research, I am convinced that developments to date in the sphere
of telecommunications, computers and banking have had both posi-
tive and negative effects upon the traditional postal system. Since
1970, the volume of domestic toll telephone calls has increased far
more rapidly than the volume of letter mail, not just in percentage
terms, but in absolute numbers as well. And, while historical data
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are sparse, it appears that thia growth in Lol telephone messagres
has been at the expense of that portion of the mml stream which
we would call correspondence.

Simultaneously, transactions in the mail--specifically, bills, pay-
ments and items such as bank statements —have bren growing
dramatically. This growth in transactions can be attributed to a
number of demoygraphic and economic {uctors, but iU also stems
{from the wide availabilily of credit card systems and personal
checking accounts which, in turn, are the result of evolving tele-
communications and computer technologies.

Looking to the future—perhaps 20 years from now—I can envi-
sich the possibility that further developments in telecommunica-
tions, computers and banking will eliminate the demand for a large
portion of the present postal system.

Considering the interaction between mail and other systems of
communications, and considering the Federal Government's com-
mitments to providing the Nation's citizens with ready access to
communications services, I believe it is both appropriate and desir-
able that this subcommitiee address the future role of the Postal
Service as part of the subcommitiee’s efforts to review and revise
the Communications Act of 1934,

As to what specific role USPS shouid play, if any, 1 hold no brief.
[ would like to mention, however, some of the pros and cons of
Postal Service participation in the telecommunications business,

EMS services, such as Mailgram, ECOM, and Intelpost are very
interesting {or a variety of reasons, but they are insignificant side-
shows in the overall communications business. The major telecom-
munications effort being considered by USPS is a large scale
system using electronic input from high-volume mailers. These
messages would be transported and sorted electronically, then
printed and enveloped at the destination post office for final,
manual delivery by letter carriers.

This is the approach described by the National Research Council
as a Generation II EMS, and this is the type of system that RCA
has been designing and evaluating for USPS. The lion’s share of
messages flowing through such a system probably would be rou-
tine, monthly billings destined primarily to households and small
businesses. Initial studies have claimed that an EMS like this
might handle 20 to 25 billion pieces a year at a savings of 3 to 5
cents per piece.

I can think of a number of excellent reasons why USPS should
pursue the development and operation of such a system.

First, assuming the validity of a billion dollars a year or more in
savings, USPS has an obligation to achieve those savings and pass
them back to their mailers.

Second, by passing along such savings to businesses that make
large mailings, USPS protects a significant portion of its business
and thus can spread the fixed cosl of delivery services to 95 or 100
billion pieces of mail, not 65 or 75 billion pieces.

Third, such a venture is politically more attractive and more
feasible than closing 30,000 small post offices or knocking off a
couple of delivery days a week.

Fourth, no one else is really addressing the same market in the
same way. After 20 years of talk about EFTS, for example, [ know
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of no serious effort underway at the moment that would displace
the existing housechold or retail billing system in the foreseeable
future. 1 don't know anvone who is seriously attempting to build
any kind of EMS that will reach 70 million households all around
the country or, I might add, that would provide any kind of walk-in
service for the occasional user.

For all of these reasons. USPS should be working on EMS.

On the other hand. | can see a number of factors that argue
against USPS entry into the telecommunications field. Some of
these concern market structure. management capabilities, regula-
tory f'urisdictions and other small but important details with which
I will not bore you at the moment.

The critical factor to be considered is the institutional nature of
the Postal Service. It is an organization accustomed to a monopoly
position. It is an organization which exhibits a high proportion of
common costs, thus presenting the opportunity for subsidizing com-
petitive services from monopoly revenues.

It is an organization which enjoys direct Government subsidies,
freedom from most Federal. State, and Local taxes and—for all
intents and purposes—it enjoys the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government. Given this, the real question becomes: Can Congress
and the administration develop ground rules that would allow
USPS to offer telecommunications services that would benefit both
the Postal Service and its customers without distorting the rest of
the telecommunications sector?

Having thought about these factors for and against USPS entry,
I sense there might be some acceptable possibilities in the middle
ground. Use of the USPS delivery mechanism to reach addressees
without terminals, for example, might make many private EMS
ventures more attractive than they are today. Perhaps USPS could

rovide a distribution mechanism for all private systems. I do not
Enow, and I do not think anvone else knows, what are the econom-
ics of this middle ground that Mr. Nyborg and other witnesses
spoke of But 1 do believe that they merit serious exploration.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your kind invitation to express
my views on this important subject.

[The document referred to follows:]
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Senator HoLLINGs. Thank you very much, Mr. McLaughlin.
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Senator HoLuings. Well, now, Mr. Julian, do you want to com-
ment on this marketing of service’ What do you think of the Post
Office going into marketing this particular service?

Mr. Junian. Mr. Chairman, we believe that it is proper that
private industry continue to provide a variety cf electronic message
services, We believe it has in the past. We believe that there will
be an even greater variety provided in the future. And we believe
that new technology will come in that will allow not just a variety
of vendors, but a larger variety of services to be supplied: and that
it is proper for private industry to provide these in all ways, and

(1977}

that there iz no necessity for the USPS to enter this area of
business, and that their role in all of this is the physical delivery of
mail and the interconnection through the other electronic message
services provided by private industry.

Senator Horrings. Mr. McLaughlin. do vou want to commment
on that?

Mr. McLaucHLIN. Well, [ think that 1 have seen a surprising

. amount of consensus here today in a number of areas. one of which

has been the idea of the Postal Service providing interconnection
for physical delivery from other systems.

1 think the one issue that has not been raised in that regard
addresses who those other system are aimed at. [ am not an expert.
but I am somewhat familiar with proposals for ACS. XTEN. 8BS,
and some of the other more specialized systems that have been
proposed.

[ can see a great deal of potential for the vendors of those
services to go out and market those services to large commercial or
industrial customers, and interconnect with the Postal Service for
delivery.

No one has yet addressed though, I think. the need of the person
who walks in oif the street. the small businessman whao has 25 to
50 messages a month, or mavbe at one time in a month, whe is not
going to be serviced by one of these large systems.

I think perhaps there is the potentinl for the Postal Service to
provide services for the large comnion carriers in terms of intercon-
nection, and they'd have the final delivery.

Perhaps there is a window there ot some Lype—warth explor-
ing—of a Postal Service contract with other vendors or common
carriers to offer a postal-lype service that was basically intended
for the man-off-the-street.
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Senator Presster. I'd just like to ask Mr. McLaughlin, I'm very
intervested in knowing what vour group up there at Harvard is
doing. Please send us some of your papers. Is anybody thinking
about what would happen if a communications satellite got
knocked down; with all this advanced thinking we're doing, we
almost have to have a fallback communications system?

Can you imagine what would happen if there'd be a brownout or
a satellite didn’t work? Is there any thought being given to this
question? Or is this so far-fetched that it would never happen?

Mr. McLavGHLIN. Well, I think, considering some of the events
over the last couple of years, it's not farfetched.

I think you get into many of the same arguments as the FCC has
heard over many years on submarine cables versus satellites, what
you need for a fallback position, national defense consideraiions, or
what have you.

I've heard many people talking here today, including Senator
Goldwater earlier, about future systems; and I think there is a
tendency, on the part ¢f many of us, to generalize our own experi-
ence to the whole population.

I know of many friends and colleagues who have no qualms
about sitting down and playing with a computer terminal. %n the
other hand I don’t see most of the populatxon of the United States
doing that in the near future.

I think a lot of the sophisticated systems that we talk about are
very nice and very efficient for business, but you still will have the
need for conventional postal services for a long time to come.

Senator Pressler. I have no further questions.

Unless somebody else wants to respond to that, I'll recess, subject
to the call of the Chair.

[(Whereupon, at 12:50 p.m., the hearing was adjourned, subject to
the call of the Chair.)
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STATEMENT OF BENJAMIN M. COMPAINE

Mr. CompainNe. Thank you.,

Mr. Chairman, my name is Benjamin M. Compaine. | am execu-
tive director of the media and allied arenas of the Program on
Information Resources Policy at Harvard University. I am also the
editor and coauthor of a recently published book Who Owns the
Media? Concentration of OQwnership in the Mass Communications
Industry.

However, I speak here only for myself, not for the program nor
any ‘of the nearly 100 diverse private firms and Government agen-
cies that support the program’s work,

On March 3, 1980, I presented testimony to your colleagues at
the House Committee on Small Business, Subcommittee on General
Oversight and Minority Enterprise. At that time, I offered a gener-
al statement on concentration of ownership of the media and de-
scribed a framework within which it might be better understood.
Today I will restrict my remarks to the more narrow issues of the
proposed legislation in H.R. 6228,

There is general agreement that the media and communications
environment of 1980 is radically different from the one that existed
when the Communications Act of 1934 was enacted. Technology is
encouraging change at an increasing rate, so that the legislation of
today, if not carefully considered may be outdated in much less
time. Crucial to this understanding, I believe that it is most helpful
to reduce our reliance on such traditional media terms as “newspe-
per,” and “television.” What we are really concerned with are
sources of content creation—that is, programing in the broad sense
that includes news as well as entertainment—and the information
distribution process—that is, transmission channels that includes
broadcast, cable, telephone, and similar electronic services, as well
as physical delivery of hard copy product, such as a newspaper.
Traditionally, it has been the limitations of the distribution side
that proved to be the bottleneck in providing maximum diversity of
programinﬁ.

At the threshold of the 1980’s, we can envision a not too distant
future in which distribution witl become less of a problem, as cable
connections to homes provide potential access to 50 or 100 channels
of broadband information, or as the telephone network becomes
increasingly integrated with vast data bases in remote locations
providing a variety of information to anyone with a telephone and
video screen. These developments and others are an important
context for current legislation.

As a result of technological innovation, it would be a mistake to
restrict those firms currently in the information creation or distri-
bution business to their existing mode of operations. Publishers
and distributors of newspapers, in their current ink and paper
format for example, must able to move into other forms of
distribution, such as over cable or telephone lines. Television
broadcasters must be able to anticipate and react to competition
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from offline distribution such as videc cassettes or disks, as well as
cable or direct satellite broadcasting to homes and apartment
buildings.

In addressing the specific questions put to us by this committee,
let me summarize my analysis: '

One, studies of both the content of television programs and news-
papers find no consistent pattern of either social benefit nor harm
stemming from ownership of different media in geographically sep-
arate markets. That is, the better multimedia conglomerates per-
form their media and journalistic roles as well as the best of the
nondiversified or locally owned properties, while the less conscien-
tious cross-media owners are no different than the poorer single
entity proprietors.

Two, cross-media ownership of a newspaper, television, and radio
station in a particular market by a single entity does not result in
any significant economies of scale and thus provides no economic
benefit for advertisers nor users in the community. Nor is there
evidence of improved service to the community. Thus, there are no
economic nor social justifications to support additional combina-
tions. This is not to say that in any given situation they are serving
their constituents worse then if ownership were split up.

Three, given the multiplicity of radio stations and owners in both
AM and FM service in most markets—and the likelihood of even
more available frequencies—there no longer appears to be a tech-
nological justification for content regulation of radio that differs

from that applied to the print media. Licensing regulations can be -

set at a minimum level that takes into account only fitness of the
owner to have the right to use the assigned spectrum space. There
is no need to force a given radio station to provide mandatory types
of programing any more than the only newspaper in town should
be required to print a certain number of letters to the editor or run
a certain number of inches of political columns.

Four, although video programing is moving rapidly via cable
toward the radio model of large numbers of channels for special-
ized interests, it is not there yet. At this point we can only wait to
see how that potential is fulfilled by programers and used by
information consumers and advertisers. Thus, for the time being,
there is continuing rationale for separate treatment of broadcast
television owners.

Five, because situations in markets vary, the FCC should be
permitted considerable flexibility in case-by-case decisionmaking in
such areas as mandatory sale of media property. While Congress
should continue to provide guidelines, the complexity of the chang-
ing media environment must provide leeway for exceptions. In
general, however, there will probably be potential for little harm in
Brohlblting by statute future crossownership of a newspaper and

roadcast station in the same market. But in the longer run, a
question which is going to be of even greater impact concerns
ownership of a cable franchise and a local newspaper in the same
market, but this is something now under the auspices of State or
local jurisdictions. I believe that cable, not broadcast, crossowner-
ship is going to be the primary policy issue of this decade.

I appreciate the opportunity to meet with you today and will be
pleased to elaborate on these comments during the discussion.
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Mr. VaN DeeruiN. Mr. Compaine and then Mr. Krasnow.

Mr. CompaINE. | would like to remind everybody we keep talking
about ownership of the distributing network, that is the station or
whatever, but what we are really trying to get to is diversity of
content. And this still gets back to the opportunities of programers
to provide the diversity of content. The point about cable being so

(36)

important is that regardless of who owns the cable stations the
new systems going in have 50 or 78 or 100 channels. And the way
that these systems get sold to the public is by offering them serv-
ices that go beyond what they can get by turning on their local
broadcast service stations, which most people can get already.

So that the opportunities for diversity are really in filling up
these channels that the cable operators, no matter who they are,
are c¢rying for. They are hungry to get special interest programing
to meet the needs of various parts of the community to meet their
needs and interest them in getting the cable. So I think in the long
run the interest of groups is in opportunities for programing and
not necessarily owning the wire or the transmitter that provides
the signal.
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I think a number of people who are bothered by section 2 would
support section 3. And those of us who were in the news media
used to say that when everybody is mad at you you are probably
doing a pretty good job.

Mr. Botein, you raised a couple of points I thought very impor-
tant. It is not the intent of the legislation to nullify other multiple
ownership regulations. And I would be very interested if you would
care to supply any language that you feel would clarify the legisla-
tion in that regard. We will consider it and take care of that
situation whether it be in statutory language or in report language
or something. But the clarification is serious in terms of the public
interest and we would not want that to occur.

The limit on number of stations you can hold and so forth are
questions that I think virtually every member of the committee
wants to see remain.

Just one last question for the panel generally. In dealing with
legislation like this, it is clearly narrow. It does not, and Mr.
Compaine in particular talked about trying to see to the future.
This does not deal with some other forms of crossownership that at
some point we might want to deal with. It seems to me that it
would be difficult to predict at this time what those kinds of
crossownership issues might be in the future. And therefore it
might be best to leave that until it is more clear what abuses if any
could grow out of ownership between newspapers, broadeasting,
cable systems, satellite systems, et cetera.

Would you, particularly, Mr. Compaine, because you are kind of
a futurist in this area, feel that is an accurate judgment or do you
feel we know enough to act now in that area?

Mr. ComraIne. Well, we can speculate. We have already seen the
first case arise in Hartford where the local Cable Commission has
ordered the Times Mirror Co. to divest itself of either the Hartford
Courant or two cable franchises it has in that area for just that
reason; that they don’t want to see the same company own both.
This is a case where thereis regulation though itis not coming from
the Federal Government.

I think that as we look at the types of services cable can provide,
whether it is informational services, news bulletin services, interac-
tive services, classified advertising, we certainly can see now the
potential for a cable operator to offer some types of information
that are similar to what a newspaper now offers. Whether or not
the newspaper should therefore be able to do it because it is a
continuation of their business or whether or not they should be
told they can't do it because it is potential competition is a ques-
tion I think that will have to be dealt with.

And I agree this is really not the time for any legislation on that
but we should keep our eye on that. And that is I think going to
become a big problem. And I would rather not see it become a
problem with a lot of grandfathering later on. As soon as it gets a
]ittl(ia further into the consciousness I think somebody has to be
ready——

Mr. Swirr. You are talking in the next 3 or 5 years?

Mr. CompaINE. Yes, I am not talking about 10 years.

Mr. Swirr. Any other comments on that?

Mr. Comraine. No.
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